AGENDA PACKET

FOR
MARCH 8, 2021
REGULAR MEETING

OF THE
YANCEY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS



II.
I1I.
Iv.

VI

VII.

VIII.
IX.

XI.

AGENDA
YANCEY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING
MARCH 8, 2021
6:00 PM

Call to Order — Chairman Jeff Whitson
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
Approval of the Agenda

Consent Agenda

Approval of February 4, 2021 Special Meeting Minutes

Approval of February 8, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes

Approval of February 8, 2021 Closed Session Minutes

Approval of Yancey County Detention Center’s Medical Services Plan
Approval of Road Naming Request

Approval of PROCLAMATION Declaring March 2021 American Red Cross
Month

Approval of Board of Equalization & Review (BOER) 2021

February 2021 Tax Collection Reports — Informational

Civil Design Concepts Consulting Services Agreement for Micaville Site —
Informational

me o TR

ol

WAMY CARES Act — Starli McDowell & April Beck
Toe River Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan — Jeff Howell & Nathan Slaughter
a. RESOLUTION
County Manager’s Report — Lynn Austin
a. Memorandum of Agreement for Cooperative Extension Employee
b. Economic Development Incentive Agreement — Little Leaf NC, LLC
¢. Projects Updates
County Commissioners’ Report
County Attorney’s Report — Donny Laws
Public Comments

Adjourn



- u’iﬂ’
-

-ty
|L4
2l I

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

Description

The consent agenda presented for the March 2021 Regular Meeting includes the following for review and
approval:

Approval of February 4, 2021 Special Meeting Minutes

Approval of February 8, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes

Approval of February 8, 2021 Closed Session Minutes

Approval of Yancey County Detention Center’s Medical Services Plan

Approval of Road Naming Request

Approval of PROCLAMATION Declaring March 2021 American Red Cross Month
Approval of Board of Equalization & Review (BOER) 2021

February 2021 Tax Collection Reports — Informational

Civil Design Concepts Consulting Services Agreement for Micaville Site — Informational

MG e R o

Item Presenter

{

Board Action Requested

| Approve the Consent Agenda ltems




Minutes of the February 4, 2021
Special Meeting of the Yancey County Board of Commissioners
Held at 6:00 pm at East Yancey Middle School of
Yancey County Schools, Burnsville, North Carolina

Present at the meeting held February 4, 2021 were Chairman Jeff Whitson,
Commissioner David Grindstaff, Commissioner Jill Austin, and Commissioner Mark
Ledford. County Manager Lynn Austin, Finance Officer Brandi Burleson, and Clerk to
the Board Sonya Morgan. Commissioner Johnny Riddle was absent from the meeting.

Present and representing Yancey County Schools (YCS) were School Board
Chairman Edwin Fortner, School Board Vice Chairman Wade Dahlberg, School Board
Member Will Hensley, School Board Member Cody Whitson, Superintendent Kathy
Amos, Finance Officer Robbie Renfro, Assistant Superintendent of Middle/High School
Curriculum Heather Cox, Technology Director Karen Banks, and Board Clerk Xan
Robinson.

Call to Order

Chairman Whitson called the meeting to order, welcomed those in attendance,
and extended his appreciation to the Yancey County Board of Education for hosting the
joint meeting between the Yancey County Board of Commissioners and the Yancey
County Schools Board of Education.

Approval of the Agenda

Chairman Whitson asked for a motion to approve the agenda. Commissioner
Austin made a motion to approve the agenda, which was seconded by Commissioner
Ledford. By unanimous vote, the motion was carried. (Attachment A)

Joint Meeting

School Board Chairman Edwin Fortner welcomed those in attendance and turned
the meeting over to Kathy Amos, Superintendent of Yancey County Schools (YCS). Ms.
Amos began by discussing the schools system’s response to the pandemic and the use of
CARES Act funding to keeping the system going. Ms. Amos presented the 2021-2022
Local Budget Planning Meeting and indicated budget planning for the upcoming year
would include a focus on facilities options for elementary grades, with the principle
concerns of providing clean, safe learning environments. (Attachment B) She also
reported that YCS was not requesting additional funding for the upcoming 2021-22 fiscal
year and hoped to complete the elementary facilities projects without the use of taxpayer
dollars. A discussion also ensued regarding the need for Pre-K classrooms, as there was
a waiting list prior to the pandemic. Ms. Amos said it is possible that YCS may be able
to secure funding from the state capital needs fund, with $8 million dedicated for South
Toe Elementary and $8 million for Micaville Elementary. Robbie Renfro, YCS Finance
Officer, reported that the funds do have to go towards new construction or renovations.
Ms. Amos discussed the timelines for the upcoming year including conducting a facilities
study, plans to secure state bond or state funds, selling current surplus properties,
deciding on school plan options, and presenting the data to the Board of Commissioners
next year at this time for the 2022-2023 budget planning cycle. Heather Cox discussed
the constraints placed on the county due to mandates limiting class sizes and the impact it
has on where teachers are placed. Ms. Amos discussed possible facilities options for
elementary including building a new school in the castern end of the county, building a
new school in the central part of the county, or making additions at Burnsville
Elementary and Blue Ridge Elementary. Ms. Amos indicated whether the plans included
new construction or additions to existing facilities, the school system would also need to
consider redistricting. She summarized with a long-range facilities plan that included
contracting for facilities study, contracting with a local realtor to seek out potential
properties, researching infrastructure services and funding, and securing funding sources
for construction.



Mr. Fortner reiterated it was the goal of YCS to build without using taxpayer
dollars and that the school system was looking for support from the Board. Chairman
Whitson assured the Board of Education and school staff that the Board of
Commissioners would support their efforts. Chairman Whitson expressed his
appreciation to the Board of Education for hosting the joint meeting.

Adjournment

Having no further business, Commissioner Grindstaff made a motion to adjourn,
with Commissioner Austin seconding the motion. The Board of Commissioners voted
unanimously to adjourn.

Approved and authenticated this the 8™ day of March 2021.

Jeff Whitson, Chairman

David Grindstaff, Vice Chairman

Jill Austin, Commissioner

Sonya Morgan, Clerk to the Board

Mark Ledford, Commissioner

(county seal)

Johnny Riddle, Commissioner



Minutes of the February 8, 2021
Regular Meeting of the Yancey County Board Of Commissioners
Held at 6:00 pm in the Yancey County Courtroom
Yancey County Courthouse, Burnsville North Carolina

Present at the meeting held February 8, 2021 were Chairman Jeff Whitson,
Commissioner Mark Ledford, Commissioner Jill Austin, Commissioner David Grindstaff,
Commissioner Johnny Riddle, County Manager Lynn Austin, County Finance Officer Brandi
Burleson, Planning and Economic Development Director Jamie McMahan, County Attorney
Donny Laws, and Clerk to the Board Sonya Morgan. Members of the media and the general
public attended the meeting.

Call to Order
Chairman Whitson called the meeting to order and welcomed those in attendance.

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

Commissioner Ledford delivered the invocation. Chairman Whitson led the Pledge of
Allegiance to the Flag.

Approval of the Agenda

Chairman Whitson asked for a motion to amend the agenda to include closed session to
discuss a matter with the county attorney pursuant to NC Gen. Stat. §143-318.11(a}3) and
approve it. Commissioner Riddle made a motion to amend the agenda to include closed session
and approve. Commissioner Grindstaff seconded the motion. By unanimous vote the amended
agenda was approved. (Attachment A)

Consent Agenda
Chairman Whitson read through the items on the consent agenda as follows:

Approval of January 11, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes

Approval of January 11, 2021 Closed Session Minutes

Approval of Road Naming Request (Attachment B)

Approval of Yancey County 2021-2022 Budget Calendar (Attachment C)

Approval of 2020-2021 Report of Unpaid Taxes That Are Liens on Real Property
(Attachment D)

f. January 2021 Tax Collection Reports — Informational (Attachment E)

g. 2020 Economic Development Report for Yancey County — Informational (Attachment F)

a0 o

Chairman Whitson asked for a motion to approve the items on the consent agenda.
Commissioner Austin made a motion to approve the consent agenda, which was seconded by
Commissioner Grindstaff. By unanimous vote the consent agenda was approved.

Yancey County Tax Office

Lindsay Smith, Tax Administrator, addressed the Board and presented a refund request
received by the Tax Office from Mr. James Clouse. Ms. Smith reported, upon investigating the
matter, she determined that the tax was not imposed due to a clerical error. She said she had
consulted with County Attorney Donny Laws regarding the matter. Commissioner Riddle made a
motion to uphold the Tax Administrator’s opinion and deny the refund request. Commissioner
Ledford seconded the motion. By unanimous vote, the motion was approved. Ms. Smith
indicated that she would notify Mr. Clouse of the Board’s decision by letter, and suggest he
consult with his legal counsel regarding his options to recoup the other property owners’ portion
of the back taxes he had paid. (Attachment G)

Ms. Smith then presented the current list of approved Board of Equalization and Review
(BOER) members. (Attachment H) She reported we are currently in appeal period and getting
ready to hold hearings. She reported she would like to add additional board members and begin
the hearings in April. Ms. Smith discussed the difficulty, particularly during the pandemic, of



having individuals available to serve. A discussion ensued and Ms. Smith said she would recruit
some additional members to serve on the BOER and present them to the Board during the March
regular meeting for approval.

High Country Council of Governments Proposed Charter Amendments

Chairman Whitson presented the request from the High Country Council of Governments
regarding proposed Charter amendments. (Attachment I) Commissioner Riddle, who serves on
the executive board of High Country COG, explained the executive board was having a hard
time getting a quorum, as the existing charter required 60%. He said as the executive board
began considering changing the bi-laws, it lead to a closer look at the charter. Commissioner
Riddle reported that the proposed amendments were being made to update the language in the
charter and that all seven member counties must approve the amendment for them to be adopted.
Commissioner Riddle reported that the High Country COG executive board had approved the
amendments. Commissioner Riddle made a motion approve the RESOLUTION adopting the
amended Charter for the High Country Council of Governments, with Commissioner Grindstaff
seconding the motion. (Attachment J) By unanimous vote, the motion was approved.

Proposal Affecting Official Name of a Waterfall

Chairman Whitson opened the floor for discussion regarding the recent request for a
recommendation about a proposal affecting the official name of a waterfall from the US Board
on Geographic Names (BGN). The request was made as a result of confusion over the National
Park Service’s use of the name of Crabtree Falls since the 1930s for the 70-foot waterfall on Big
Crabtree Creek near the Blue Ridge Parkway in southeastern Yancey County. The official
recorded name of the falls on USGS maps is Upper Falls. The waterfall officially named
Crabtree Falls is located on private property on East Fork Crabtree Creek in Mitchell County.
The National Park Service has proposed changing the name of Upper Falls to Crabtree Falls.
The landowner of the waterfall on private property inquired about changing the name but has not
yet submitted a proposal for a name change. The US Board on Geographic Names presented the
opportunity for the Board to support or reject the proposal for the name change from Upper Falls
to Crabtree Falls. Commissioner Riddle made a motion to support the name change.

Commissioner Grindstaff seconded the motion. By unanimous vote the motion was approved.
(Attachment K)

County Manager’s Report

County Manager Austin reported to the Board the county had received $579,000 in
reimbursement from DOT after finishing the turn lane at Blue Ridge Elementary and indicated it
was the final piece of the school construction project.

County Manager Austin then presented the agreement with High Country COG for
administration of the $450,000 CDBG-CV grant. The agreement provided for $40,000 to be
paid to High Country COG; $3,500 for grant preparation and $36,500 for administration of the
project. She asked the Board to approve the agreement with correction of a typographical error
(pg. 6, under Administrative Budget) for a fee of $40,000 instead of $28,833 as stated in the
agreement. (Attachment L) Commissioner Ledford made a motion to approve the agreement
with the correction of the typographical error. Commissioner Austin seconded the motion. By
unanimous vote, the motion was approved.

County Manager Austin reported to the Board the county had received the bids for
reconstruction of the park component for Cane River Park. She reported that the lowest bidder
was K & T Construction in the amount of $374,583, with the seconded lowest bid by Rock
Creek in the amount of $462,252. County Attorney Laws discussed FEMA guidelines for
selecting the lowest responsive, responsible bidder in the formal bidding process. Commissioner
Ledford recommended the contractor awarded the Cane River Park contract meet with the
engineer to review the scope of work and develop a detailed progress schedule. Commissioner
Riddle made a motion to award the contract to K & T Construction contingent upon meeting
with the engineer to review the scope of work and developing a detailed progress schedule.
Commissioner Grindstaff seconded the motion. (Attachment M) By unanimous vote, the
motion was approved.



County Manager Austin asked Jeff Howell to provide an update on FEMA. Mr. Howell
addressed the Board and reiterated the importance of the contractor’s understanding of the scope
of work to be done at Cane River Park. He said the FEMA requirement is to return the park to
its pre-flood condition. Mr. Howell gave an update on COVID vaccines, stating the county
would receive 200 vaccines during the current week and the next, and vaccine allotments should
go up in subsequent weeks. He briefly discussed plans to hold future vaccination clinics and
expressed appreciation for county employees who are currently working the call centers and
scheduling appointments for vaccines.

County Manager Austin revisited the CDBG — CV grant and asked the Board to approve
and adopt the grant in its entirety. Commissioner Ledford made a motion to approve and adopt
the CDBG — CV grant in its entirety, including compliance with all Federal, State, and local
mandates. (Attachment N) Commissioner Riddle seconded the motion. By unanimous vote, the
motion was approved.

County Commissioners’ Report

Commissioner Riddle acknowledged Yancey County EMS, stating he understood they
were doing a great job helping with vaccine clinics and expressed his appreciation for their help.
He also acknowledged Planning and Economic Development Director Jamie McMahan and
thanked him for his report and recent article.

County Attornev’s Report

County Attorney Donny Laws addressed the Board to discuss the purchase of a strip of
land across from Hickory Springs. Mr. Laws stated the Board had previously authorized County
Manager Austin to negotiate the purchase of the parcel of land at the November 9, 2020 meeting
as part of an incentive agreement for economic development Project Mica, now known as The
Quartz Corporation. Mr. Laws reported subsequent negotiations with the company did not
require an incentive agreement. He also indicated the company has requested sewer service be
provided. Mr. Laws indicated the approximate one-acre parcel is located across from the county
convenience center and is owned by Glenna Mclntosh. Mr. Laws said if the Board authorized
the purchase, the county would own the property, could put the sewer line in, and could widen
the turn-in. Commissioner Riddle made a motion to authorize the county to purchase the
property. Commissioner Grindstaff seconded the motion. By unanimous vote, the motion was
approved.

County Attorney Laws said that he would discuss the matter of Yancey County versus
United Community Bank in closed session.

Public Comments

Ed King spoke on a community announcement and stated his intent to run for sheriff in
2022 as non-partisan candidate.

Next, Commissioner Ledford made a motion to recess the February 2021 regular meeting
of the Board for the purpose of holding the East Yancey Water and Sewer District meeting and
to resume the regular meeting immediately thereafter. Commissioner Riddle seconded the
motion. By unanimous vote the meeting was recessed. Commissioner Grindstaff made a motion
to resume the February 2021 regular meeting of the Board, with Commissioner Riddle seconding
the motion. By unanimous vote, the Board resumed the February 2021 regular meeting.

Closed Session

Chairman Whitson asked for a motion to go into closed session pursuant to NC Gen. Stat.
§143-318.11(a)(3) to consult with the county attorney on the lawsuit between Yancey County
and United Community Bank. Commissioner Riddle made a motion to go into closed session,
with Commissioner Grindstaff seconding the motion. The Board voted unanimously to enter
closed session. Commissioner Austin made a motion to leave closed session and reenter open
session. Commissioner Riddle seconded the motion. By unanimous vote the Board voted to
reenter open session. The Board did not take any action during closed session.



Adjournment

Having no further business, Commissioner Grindstaff made a motion to adjourn with
Commissioner Riddle seconding the motion. The Board of Commissioners voted unanimously to
adjourn.

Approved and authenticated this the 8" day of March 2021.

Jeff Whitson, Chairman

David Grindstaff, Vice Chairman

Jill Austin, Commissioner

Sonya Morgan, Clerk to the Board

Mark Ledford, Commissioner

(county secal)

Johnny Riddle, Commissioner



o Review of The Yancey County Detention Centet’s Medical
Services Plan for Approval and Adoption by The Governing

Body
Name Tittle 'Data
‘A L ‘ i Commuastn/ /@? 3, J0iq
ety
isstiasiise /.// 2 243
Covmuasomne) el (D, F00
2 i
,.....- 'J:‘ll,ll 4. ol /‘()‘?LO

// / % Fir 2 A // /y@c:f
. 77/ ' I 7 2072 2 y /ig//g//m’agg
o /;;; A _-, :-- Lozt 4/-— [}/-*206”0




i

GENERAL CONTRACT F OR SERVICES

This Conuact for Services is made effective as of July 01, 2017, by and between Yancey County Sheri
Office ("Sheriff's Office") of P O Box 6, Burnsville, North Carolina 28714, and Mountain Medical Arts
("MMA™ of 2 South Mam Street, P 0 Box 1240, Bmm;vﬂle, North Carolina 28714,

1. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES. MMA will provide to Sheriffs Department the following setvices
{collectively, the "Services")'

» Provide medical care w1thm oz scope of care for jail inmates at our ofﬁce as needed by
appointment only during regula.r business hours.

Selective medical services within our scope of care as requested by the Sheriff for employees

Provide a nurse to visit the jail, in a secure room separate ﬁom inxnates as  needed for pauent care.

No new prescriptions will be written by a nurse.

2. PAYMENT Payment shail be made to Mountain Medical Arts, P O Box 1240, Bumsvﬂle, North
Carolina 28714. Sheriff's Oﬁicc agrees to make payments for inonthly services per term schedule.

Ifmedmal services rendered for inmates during any monsh exceeds the regular monthly charge, the
overage will be invoiced by MMA The cost for any lab services or mpphes necessary may he billed

- separately.

'Mechcal services requested by the Shenff for employees will bc billed commensurate with the service

prov1ded.

In addmon o any other right or remedy provided by law, if Sheriff's Office fails to pay for the Services
when due, MMA has the option to treat such failure to pay as & material breach of this Contract, and may
cancel this Contract and/or seek legal remedlcs ‘

3. TERM., This Agreement wﬂl be renewed automatwa]ly on July 01 of each subsequent year with an
increase of 3% each month for that year to cover the rise in oﬁicc costs. The Agreement will remain in
effect unfil cancelled by either party.

4, CONFIDENT]ALITY MMA, and its employees, agents, orrepresentatlves will not at any time or in

any manner, either du'ectly or indirectly, use for the personal benefit of MMA, or divelge, disclose, or
coramunicate in any manner, any information that is proprietary o Sheriffs Office. MMA and its
employees, agents, and representatives will protect such information and treat it as strictly conﬁdennal
This provision will continue to be effective after the termination of this Contract.

5. DEFAULT. The occutrence of any of the fo]lowmg shall constitute a material default lmder this
Contract:

a.  The failure to make a required payment when due.
b. The insolvency or bankruptey of either party.

. ¢ The failore to make available or delwer the Services in the time and Toanner prowded for -

in this Contract

6. REMEDIES In addition to any and all other Tights a party may have available accordmg to law, 1f a
party defamlts by failing to substantially perform sny provision, term or condition of this Contract
{including without limitation the failure to make a monetary paymént when due), the other party may

WW N %Wusuf



eult,

terminate the Contract by prowdmg written notice to the defaulting party. This notlce shall describe with
sufficient detail the nature of the defaunlt. _

7. FORCE MAJEURE If perfonnance of this Contract or any obligation under this Confract is
prevented, restricted, or interfered with by causes beyond-either party's reasonable control (*Force

" Majeure"), and if the party unable to carry out its obligations gives the 6ther party prompt written notice

of such event, then the obligations of the party invoking this provision shall be suspended to the extent
necessary by such event. The term Force Majeure shall include, without limitation, acts of God, fire,
explosion, vandalism, storm or other similar occurrence, orders or acts of military or civil authority, or by
national emergencies, insurrections, riots, or wars, or strikes, lock-outs, work stoppages, or supplier
failures. The excused party shall use redasonable efforts wrider the cirenmstances to avoid or remove such
causes of non-performance and shall procccd to perform with reasonsble dispatch whenever such causes
are removed or ceased. An act or omission shall be deemed within the reasonable control of a party if
committed, omitted, or caused by such party, or its employees, officers, agents, or affiliates.

8. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Contract containg the entire agreement of the pa:txes' and there are no
other promises or conditions in any other agreernent whether oral or written concerning the subject matter
of this Contract. This Contract supersedes any prior written or oral agreements between the parties.

9. SEVERABILITY If ahy prommn of this Contract will be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any
reason, the remaining provigions will contirue to be valid and enforceable. If a court finds that any
provision of this Contract is invalid or unenforceable, but that by limiting such provision it would become

valid and enforceable; then such prowsmn wiil be deemed to be wnﬂen construed, and enforced as so
limited.

10. AMEN])MENT This Contract may be modified or amended in writing, if the wntmg is signed by -
the party obhgated under the amendment

11. GOVERN]NG LAW. This Contract shall be construed in accordance w1th the laws of the State of
North Carohna.

12. NOTICE. Any notice or communication required or permitted wnder this Contract shall be
sufficiently given if delivered in person or by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the address set f-
orth in the opening paragraph or 1o such other address as orie party may have furnished to the other in
writing. -

13. WAIVER OF CONTRACTUAL RIGHT. The failure of either party to enforce any provision of
this Contract shall not be construed #s & waiver or imitation of that party's right to subsequently enforce

-and compel strict compliance with every provision of this Contract.’



Service Recipient:
Yancey County Sheriff's Office

By: ﬂ /
Service Provider: -
Mountain Medical Arts

el B U3

Date: /:3/’/7 -




Yancey County

Oé@‘@ﬁ%

ok

Jail and Detention -
Policies and Procedures CD _ (.P ,a'b
Subject: Health Care Services Policy Number: 11.01
ls'sué Date:02/01/2018 Revision Date:

Approval Authority

Title and Signature:

POLICY: “ :ﬁy\:ancey County

Yancey County Jail provides medical on a reasonable and cost-effective basis, consistent
with the facilities that are available.

PENOLOGICAL INTEREST:

Itis in the penological interest of Yancey County Jail to provide reasonable and necessary
inmate medical health services while confined to this facility.

PROCEDURE:

Yancey County Jail reasonably provides medical, dental, and mental health services to
inmates as circumstances dictate. In providing these medlcal services, the custody and
control of inmates is not neglected. . :

Inmates have a right to refuse routine medical attention. Uncooperative or disruptive -
inmates may not be suitable candidates for routine medical aftention. Such refusals or.

uncooperative actions are documented.

Initial Intake Evaluation:
1. Inmates brought into the facrlfty are medlcally evaluated within a reasonable
pericd of time.
2. Arriving detainees determined to be in need of critical or emergency medlcal

mental, or dental care, are not be accepted into the facility, and remain in the
custody of the arresting or transpoiting officer.

3. Arriving detainees that indicate they are in need of prescription medlcatlon and

who do not have the prescribed medication may not be accepted into the facility -

until the arresting or transporting officer has an opportunity to secure the
medication or can show that the prescription is not valid or required.

4. During the initial contact, the jail officer asks the detainee, are you ill; are you
injured; are you under critical medical care?

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA
This data is proprietary and will nof be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed without the written permission of this agency. Data subject
to this restriction is contained throughout this pubrcatlon

Page 10f5




B
3

| Jail and Detention Policies and Procedu_res, 11.01 Health Care Services

8.

S.

. If he or she answers yes to any of these questions or there is good reason to

suspect that critical care is indicated, the detainee is not accepted and remains
in the custody of the arresting or transporting officer.

Facility staff may recommend that transporting or arresting officers transport
their detainee to the appropriate medical, mental, or dental facility for treatment.

Detainees showing signs or known to be mentally incompetent are not accepted

if alternative mental health facilities are available.

Before the booking process is completed, personnel will complete a medlcal :
screening of the detainee and complete the medical portion of the intake form.

Detainees who claim fo be infected with a communicable disease are isolated
_ from the general population, pending further medical evaluation.

10.Reasonable efforts are made to acquire professional assistance in processing

detainees with special disabilities. !f qualified professionals are available, they
should be summoned to assist, or contacted through a communications device.

11.Observation and evaluation of the physical and mental condition of detainees

continues through each phase of mtake including searches, dressmg out, andfor
showers.

12.Any medical alert tags worn by the detamee arenoted on the medical screening

and book-in sheets. The inmate is aliowed to wear the medical alerttag, as long
as there in no reasonable concern for secutity or safety.

~ Emergency Health Care end First Aid:

The facility maintains at least one fully stocked first aid kit and patient evacuation
equipment at the facility that is accessible to officers. Ideally, at least one officer per shift is
trained in emergency first aid and is able to demonstrate proficiency in the rendering first
aid to inmates and fellow officers in the event of a medicalemergency. With the advent of
a medical emergency, the responding officer that is first aid proficient wili:

1. Assist the injured person(s), and instruct other officers to call for professional
medical assistance, as needed;
2. Isolate or remove the injured party to a secure and safe area, ifthe i mjunes allow
- movement;
3. Provide basic first aid to the injured party such as stop the bleedmg protect the
. wound, and treat for shock;
4, Make the injured party as comfortable as possible until other medical help
arrives; -
5. Provide security for the injured party until help arrives: &
6. Refer to Medical Emergency policy.
Medication:
All medications are taken from the inmate during admission and kept in a secure location.

Additionally:

1

Medications are to determine content, and verify validity and appropriateness of
the prescription;

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA

This data is proprietary and will not be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed without the written permission ofthns agency. Data subject

to this restriction is contained throughout this publication.
Page 2 of 3




_mewﬁ

8.

9.

0 [_Jail and Detention Po_li'ciee_ and Procedures, 11.01 Health Care Services.

Determine if alternative medications are indicated;: .

Prescription medications are issued only by a physician's instruction;

An established receipt system for issuance of medication to the inmate; &

A reepons:ble officer distributes the medlcatlon to the inmates and documents
thei issuing of medlcatlons onto a MARS sheet and ensures the inmate takes it,
as directed. -

Over the counter medications may be purchased by the inmate form canteen
services. The amount of medication that can be purchased will be set by the
Chief Jailer and-medical prov:der

Medication for male inmates is to be stored and locked in the medlcal cart.
Medication for female inmates will be stored and locked in the medication
cabinet located in the booking area.

All reaming medications ordered during an inmate’s mcareeratlon can be
claimed once they are réleased.

If an inmate brings thelr own medication to the facility they can be claimed once
released.

10.All unclaimed prescribed medlcattons will be d;sposed of.

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA

This data is propnetary and will not be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed without the writien permission of this agency. Data subject

to this restrlctlon i contained throughout this publication.

Page 3.0f 3




-
: ;
e’

Yancey Count'y

Jail and Detention ‘( ’w 30530
Policies and Procedures - Q

Subject: Sick Call | Policy Number: 11.02
Issue Date:02/01/2018 ] Revision Date:
Approval Aﬁthority — . :

Title and Signature: ,ﬁkﬂ . g i

POLICY: Sheriff of Yancey County

Yancey County Jail provides each inmate with regular access to heatth care services from
a qualified provider to screen, refer, and provide basic treatment for ongoing of emerging

- health care problems.

PENOLOGICAL INTEREST:

ltis in the penological interest of this facnllty to provide reasonable and necessary medical

care to inmates, through a series of medical services such as regularly scheduled sick
calls.

DEFINITION:

e Sick Call - An organized method of treating inmate health problems through aregularly
scheduled open house. Sick call provides inmates with the opportunity to repoit a
medical iliness. or other health problem and to receive diagnosis or treatment to
alleviate the condition, if reasonably possible.

PROCEDURE:

Scheduling:

" Inmate medical oomp|a|nts are solicited daily through a request slip or form. system acted

on by staff personnel, and followed by appropriate triage, and treatment by qualified
personnel.

Sick callis scheduled on a regular basis and the schedule may change from time to time to
meet the penologlcal interests of the facility. A physician, or other qualified medical
professional is accessible to the general population inmates and conducts sick call on an
established schedule. The person conducting sick call will, if reasonably possible:

1. Examine the inmate to the extent necessary to ascertain the nature of the problem
2. Provide appropriate treatment;
3. Schedule the inmate for further examination or treatment;

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA
This data is proprietary and shall not be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed without the writien parmission of this agency. Data
subject to this restiiction is contained throughout this publication,

Page 10of3




.
b
o

\gn»/

: Dail'and Detention Policies and Procedures, 11.-02 Sick Cali

4. Refer the inmate for transfer to the facahty clinic or appropriate hosplta] when
.necessary; &

5. Arrange for immediate transfer to- appropriate facility, clinic, or hospital in medlcal
emergencies.

Process '

A member of the facility staff may assist the sick cai! officer with lnmate control and
scheduling. The staff member conducting the sick call or the ass:s’clng officer mamtams
5|ck call records.

Medlcal Co-Pay:

1. Inmates will have a medical screening upon arrival.

2. Female inmates who are pregnant will have full access to medlcal care.

3. Emergency medical care is available and provided to inmates at any time. The
inmate will be charged with a fee when they are prov:ded with non-emergency care.
Non-emergency care is defined as a symptom or injury that is not life threatening,
and this determination will be made by the Chief Jailer. '

4. Sick call will be conducted on a daily basis Monday-Friday. For an inmate to be

. seen at sick call the inmate must obtain a Medical Request Form from a Jailer on
duty. Inmates will submit completed sick call forms to the Jailer on duty. The jailer
will fite the request for review and scheduling. If an inmate fails to complete the
medical request form or misses an appointment forany reason, they must wait until
the next scheduled sick call day. Inmate initiated contact during sick cali, which
results in any medical evaluation will be documented and considered a sick call.

5. Medical Fee Schedule:

a. Sick Cali $20.00
b. Medication co-payment for one medication $10.00
C. -Medication co-payment for two or more medications $20. 00

6. There will be no charges for the following services;

a. Initial screening during arrest processing. '
b. Follow-up treatments/iest ordered by medical professionals.
c. Medical emergencies as determined by the Chief Jailer.

d. Use of force, inmate confrontations and, and restraint checks.

7. All reaming medications ordered during an inmate’s incarceration can be claimed
once they are released.

8. If you bring your own medication to the facility they can be claimed once released.

9. All unclaimed prescribed medications will be dispesed of.

Rewew of Sick Call:

A physician reviews sick call requests and records on a regular basis. Reviews may
include:

1. An examination of records;
2. Referrals made by the sick call personnel;
3. Discussion with the staff member who conducted sick call; &

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA
This data is proprietary and shall not be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed withou; the writien parmission of this agency. Data
stbject to this restriction is contained throughout this publication.

Page2of3




>

. . [ Jail and Detention Policies and Procedures, 11.02 Sick call

4. Actual examination of the inmate,,if— neceésary.

. B
. =
(o

b .

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA
“This data is propnetary and shall not be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed without the wiitten permission of this agency. Data
subject fo this restriction is contained throughout this publication.

Page 30f3




-, ¥
g

A H
e

oA~

Yancey County ‘
Jail and Detention ' CQV‘{ 19
Policies and Procedures ' w
| Subject: Suicide Prevention Policy Number: 11.03 C
lssue Date:02/01/2018 ' | Revision Date:

| Approval ,Auﬂ'lofity

Title and Signature:

POLICY:

Sheriff of Yancey County

It is the pohcy of the Yancey County Jail to be observant to the threat of suicide among
inmates and to directly intervene in suicide attempts, whenever reasonably possible

PENOLOGICAL INTEREST'

Itis in the penological interest of this detention facility tc provide reasonabie and necessary

~ security, safety, and oversight of inmates that are perceived to be at serious risk of suicide

or self inflicted injuries.

DEFINITIONS:

e Mentaily ill - The condition of a person afflicted with mental disease to such an extent

that he or she requires care and treatment for his or her-own safety or the safety of
others

. Mentally retarded - The condition of a person afflicted with substantlal sub-average -

general intellectual functioning that is associated with mpanrment in adaptive behavior.
» Mentally impaired inmate - An inmate who is mentally il or mentaliy retarded.

s Suicide - the intentional and voluntary actofa person taking or attempting to take his
or her own life.

DISCUSSION:

For most reasonably thinking individuals, being incarcerated in jail is a traumatic -

experience. Asa consequence, many individuals taken into custody and confined in a jail
exhibit some forms of abnormal behavior during |n-processmg and the early stages of
confinement. This behavior is fo be expected and is not necessarily indicative of, or a
predictor of suicide. Changes in inmate behavior have many causes; many of which have
nothing 1o do with jall life. Aninmate may feel his family has. abandoned him, loss of a job,

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA
This data is propnetary and shall not ke duplicated, disclosed, or discussed withoul the written permission of this agency. Data
subpacl to this restriction-is contained ihmughout thls publicafion.

Page 1 of 4

-~



e

[ Jail and Detention Policies and Procedures, 11.03 Suicide Prevention ]

perceived change in sociai status, or detoxification may alter behavior. However, this does -
not necessarily translate to a higher threat of suicide. Mood swings and behavioral
changes make the job of the jail staff even more difficult when it comes to watching foror

trying to prevent suicide by inmates.

Psychiatrists and psychologists do not agree on, nor have a demonsirated means of
predicting or preventing suicide attempts by their patients, in or out of the jail setting. Your
job in trying to predict and prevent suicide by inmates is not an easy task. Often our best
tools in deterring suicide attempts is a caring, thoughtful word, positive reinforcement,
listening to reports from fellow inmates or officers, and observed behavior.

Suicide atiempts take many forms; however, the actor’s goal is ending ones own life. The
actua! attempt may be long in planning or the result of an impuise that takes only a few
seconds or minutes from decision through execution. The inmate may appear normai in
one instance and carrying out his plan of self-destruction the next. Officers are cautioned
1o be watchful for three basic modes of suicide. This is often referred to as the suicidal
friad. This triad consists of: : :

1. Suicide — Inmate wishing to take his own life performs the act.

2. Homicide — Act is performed by a fellow inmate for a variety of reasons, with the
knowledge and assistance of the suicidal inmate.

3. Suicide by COP — Suicidal inmate may try to set up a scenario or scheme where
officers will be forced to use deadly force, or Kill the inmate because of some action
he [the inmate] purposely instigates. | ' :

- Jail staff may be alert to possible indicators of potentially suicidal inmates, by such things
as. ' :

Past history of suicide attempts;

Active discussion of suicide plans;

Sudden drastic change in eating, sleeping, or other personal habits;

Recent crisis in personal events, such as an extended or life sentencing; &

Loss of interest in activities or relationships the inmate had previously engaged in.

O R WON =

PROCEDURE:

An important part of the suicide prevention program is integrated into the inmate admission

and classification processes. Comments and suggestions by amresting officers, observed

behavior, inmate responsés fo questions, and signs of self inflicted wounds are all possible
“clues that may aid the intake officer in assessing the threat of imminent suicide.

When any officer perceives that an inmate is suicidal or homicidal the observing officer,
will: ) _ . '
1. Place the inmate on a suicide watch;

2. Notify the floor staff of the watch condition;

‘ RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA
This data is proprietary and shali not be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed without the written permission of this agency. Data
subject to this restriction is contained throughout this publication.

" Ppage 20f4




-Ii.lail and Detention Policies and Procedures, 11.03 Suicide Prevention |

3. Starta watch log; &
4. Notify the Chief Jailer or supervisor of the watch condition.

The ‘Shift Superviscr or Chief Jailer will consider the reasoning behind placing the
inmate on a suicide waich, observed behavior, and other factors; and, will make a
determination as to continuing, altering, or discontinuing the watch. - The Chief Jailer
will also: .

1. While awa:tmg medlcal assnstance the inmate may be held in med.-cal locked or
- watch status [if facilities are available] and will be more frequently observed by
staff.

2. Oncea medlcal or psychiatric evaluation is completed the Chief Jaller wﬂl be
notified by the medical professional if changes in the normal watch procedure
are required or recommended. The recommendations of the medical
professional will be followed for the period indicated. The Chief Jailer will
communicate with the physrclan(s) regarding any major change in the inmate’s -
behavior or status.

3. Not later than seventy-two [72] hours after receiving evidence or a statement
that may establish reasonable cause that a person committed to the Yancey
County Jail's custody has a mental illness [including being suicidal] or is a

- person with mental retardation, the Chief Jailer or Shift Supervisor on behalf of
the Yancey County Jail will notify a magistrate of that fact, requesting a mental
health status determination by the court. ThIS notification will be in writing and
on departrnent letterhead.

if a perceived or actual crisis anses after reguiar operatlng hours or on weekends or
~ holidays, and the inmate is likely to require commitment to a mental health treatment -

facility, the Chief Jailer or Shift’ Supervisor will be- notified and wilt confer on the
- recommended transfer.

The Watch

inmates determined by competent medical authority to be a suicide risk will be placed in
watch status, or placed in general population depending-on the recommendations of the
physician(s). If suicidal, the inmate will be under watch by at least one officer. This watch -
can be on a continuous basis or with frequent checks of at least every thirty [301 minttes.
Dunng these lnspectlons the officer wili vasually observe the lnmate

 The :nspectlon or watch can be performed with closed CIrCUlt television [CCTV] if the
facility is so equipped. IfCCTVi is used, the officer must be able to see the inmate on the
CCTV monitor and hear the sounds in the room through periodic checks.

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORGCEMENT DATA '
Thts data is proprietary and shall not be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed without the wiitien permission of this agency. Data
: subject to this restriction is contalnad throughout this publication.

Page 3of4




d#"i‘

Dail and Detention Polibi‘es and Procedl,ires, 11.03 Suicide Prevention

Regardless of the method of observatlon officer(s) assigned these duties will record the
inspections in a logbook. Any unusual activity or behavior should be recorded in the log,
and periodically reported to senior or medical staff as deemed appropnate by the observmg
officer.

Durlng the watch, potentially harmful items such ‘as razor blades, belts, shoe!aces
matches, pens, pencils, mirrors, glasses, and any sharp terms should be removed from the
inmate and the cell in which he or she is placed. Staff are reminded that removai of such
items from the immediate area of an inmate does not provide guarantees that. the inmate
can not or will not attempt suicide by other means. For example, one of the most common
means of suicide by inmates is strangulation or hanging by using bed clothing, or parts of

. clothing. Likewise, paper jumpsuits or gowns can also be used fo commit suicide.

Yet, to place an inmate in a room void of blankets, bedding, clothing, or other basic
amenities of life for an extended period of time is considered cruel and unusual
punishment, and is therefore forbidden by the UJ.S. Consfitution. Again, our best tools in
deterring suicide attempts may be a caring thoughtful word, positive reinforcement, reports
from fellow inmates or officers, observed behavior, and trying to get the 1nmate involved
with fac:llty activities, other inmates, or productive work.

Written reports of any suicide attempts or perceived threats of suicide will be forwarded to
the Chief Jailer or Shift Supervisor as a priority.

. RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA
This data is proprietary and shall not be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed without the written permission of this agency. Data
subject to this restnchon is contained throughout this publication.

Page 4 of 4
7




)

L H
o 7
e

O/ﬁph

Yancey County -—fﬁl “7
Jail and Detention
Policies and Procedures 0(,{ ;) A¢ - 50
Subject: Mental Health Care Policy Number: 11.04
Issue Date:02/01/2018 ' - Revision Date:

Approval Authority

Title and Signature: 4 E g
POLICY: Sheriff of Yancey Cousty .

Yancey County Jait provides treatment, services, and temporary housing for inmates who .
display or have been diagnosed as having mental health problems. In such cases, mental
health care is provided at a reasonable and cost efficient basis, consistent with budgetary
and facilities available.

PENOLOGICAL INTEREST:

ltisinthe penological interest of this detention facility to provide reasonable and necessary
security and safety standards, control, supervision, and oversight of inmates while confined
to this facility, including those inmates with mental health probiems.

PROCEDURE:

Inmates committedto Yancey County Jail are normally screened to include questions and -
observations: intended to identify mentally impaired inmates who may have problems

adapting to the detention setting, or who may be imminently dangerous to themselves or
others. Staff will observe inmates throughout their incarceration in an effort to identify
possible mental health problems In a situation in which the inmate may present an
imminent danger to self or others, staff may take appropriate action to ensure the safety of
mmates and staff [such as using restraints].

DEFlNITIONS

* Mentally ill - The condition of a person afflicted with mental d|sease to such an extent
that he or she requires care and treatment for his or her own safety or the safefy of
others.

+» Mentally retarded - The condmon of a person afflicted with substantial sub-average
general intellectual functioning that is assoclated with mpairment in adaptive behavior.

« Mentally impaired inmate - An inmate who is mentally ill or mentally retarded.

RESTRleED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA
This data is proprietary and shall not be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed without the written permission of this agency. Data
subject to this restriction is contained th roughout this publicaticn.

Page 10f3




et ’

| Jail and Detention Policies and Proceduree, 11.04 Mental Health Care

Mental Health Screening: .

On admission, the intake staff evaluates each inmate for obvious signs of mental iliness or
retardation. When a staff member suspects an inmate is mentally impaired, they notify the
Chief Jailer or Shift Supervisor for instructions. Additional dlagnostac tests or examinations
may be ordered. Pending this review, an inmate demonstrating signs of serious mental
ilness may be housed in administrative or medical segregated housing or transported
elsewhere.

Officers should be alert to possible indicators of acute mental illness, including the
following:

1. Systematized delusions of persecutions, with the rest of the personality remaining
relatively intact; _

2. Delusions of grandeur and/or persecution or a constant attitude of suspicions and
hostility; :

3. Intense anxiety or exaggerated levels of fear or panic in the absence of any real or
present danger,

4. Inappropriate emotional responses, sﬂ!lness blzarre delusaons or unpredtctabie
hollow giggling;

5. Hallucinations such as hearing, seeing, tasting, or smelling somethlng orsome one .
that is not present at the moment;

6. Extreme depression, withdrawal, neglect of hygiene and appearance, refusalto eat
or leave the cell for Iong perlods of time, or periods of uncontrollable crying; &,

7. Exaggerated mood swings from elation and over activity to depression and under
activity or a combination or alternation of these.

inmates exhibiting psychotic or dangerous behavior that appear to originate from mental
iliness are referred for evaluation.

Following an addltlonal evaluation from physician medical professional, the evaluatlon is
entered in the inmate’s medical file. This report may make recommendations on the
‘monitoring, observation, and handling of the inmate. These care recommendations are not
normally overridden. The-exception may be for security considerations, and additional
protection of the inmate or others. Any question regarding potentiat conflicts between
these medical recommendations and a possible compromise of security are resolved
between the Chief Jailer, and the prescribing medical professional.

Reporting Mental Health Conditions to the Couri:

Not later than seventy-two [72] hours after receiving evidence or a statement that may
establish reasonable cause that a person committed to the Yancey County Jail's custody
has a mental iliness [including being suicidal] or is a person with mental retardation, the
Chief Jailer on behalf of the Yancey County Jail will notify a magistrate of that fact,
requesting a mental health status determination by the court. This notification will be in
writing and on department letterhead.

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA
This data is proprietaty and shall not be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed withoul the written permission of this agency. Data
subject to this restriction is contained throughout this publication.

Page 2 of 3




R #

=%

S
~

[ Jail and Detention Policies and Procedures, 11.04 Mental Heaith Care |

Crnsns Intervention: '
When an inmate exhibits behavior that is sunmdai homicidal, or otherwlse extremely
inappropriate, the staff should request medical assistance. Asa result of this evaluation
the inmate may be placed on a suicide watch. Under the condmon of a suicide watch,
inmates are placed on a program intended to reasonably protect the individual from self-
destruction. This process is discussed in an associated policy and procedure.

If a potential mental health crisis arises after regular operating hours, on weekends, or
holidays and is likely to require commitment to a reguiar mental health treatment facility,
the Shift Superwsor or Chief Jailer. While awaiting medical assistance, the inmate may be
held in medical focked unzt status and/or closely observed by staff. .

Transfers for Mental Health Treatment:

Prior to a non-emergency transfer of any inmate to a mental health facility, the consulting
mental health specialist making the referral will prepare awritten report to be transported
with the inmate. The Shift Supervisor or Chief Jailer wilf ordinarily be consulted in advance
of the transfer and provided the specific reasons for the transfer.

Psychotropic Drugs:

Administration - of psychotropic drugs such as anti- psychotlcs antidepressants, and/or
drugs requiring special handling are administered u_nder the direction of a physician or
person specifically authorized by the physician and is given only in accordance with written
instructions listed in the medical file. Officers assigned to disfribute medication ensure that
the intended inmate consumes the drugs. Any refusal to take prescribed medication is
recorded and the medical staff advised before the next sick call, unless the inmate’s
behavior reasonably indicates immediate notification is appropriate.

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA
Thls data is proprietary and shall not be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed without the writter permission of this agency. Data
subject to this restriction is contained throughout this publication.

Page 3 of 3




Yancey County O/ﬁﬂfn /1}

Jail and Detention ‘ e -fLH? |

Policies and Procedures

Subject: Dental Services Policy Number: 11.05

Issue Date:02/01/2018 | | Revision Date:

Approval Authority :

Title and Signature:

POLICY: Sheriff of Yancey County”
Yancey County Jail facility encourages inmates to exercise good dental hygiene by

providing toothbrushes and tooth paste, as well as access to emergency and essential
dental services while they are mcaroerated '

PENOLOGICAL INFTEREST:

Yancey County Jail has a penological interest in- nﬁamtanmng health and encouragtng
improved hyglene among inmates. Thns includes reasonable and necessary emergency
~ dental services. :

PROCEDURE:

Daily Mainténance of Teeth & Gums
inmates are encouraged to exercise good dental hygiene while they are incarcerated in this

facility. As a part of this support, the facility prowdes toothbrushes and tooth paste to
inmates who do not othenmse have access to these healthcare items.

Fees may be charged to inmates for dental ser-\ncesand related professional care.

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEME'N'_I' DATA
“This data is proprietary and shall not be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed without the written permission of this agency. Data
subject to this restriction is contained throughout this publication.

. Pageiofti




Mg

i}
ey

OGN t—

R-l2-18

e 9 (g PR

Policies and Procedures

Subjecf: Health Care Services Policy Number: 11.01
Issue Date:02/01/2018 | Rewsmn Date:

Approval Authority .@* é

Title and Signature: E? MM
, | Sheriff of Yancey Cmmty -
POLICY:

Yancey County Jait prov;des medicalona reasonable and cost—ef‘fectlve basis, consistent
with the facmtles that are available.

PENOLOGICAL. INTEREST:

It is in the penological interest of Yancey County Jail to provide reasonable and necessary
inmate medical health services while confined to this facility.

PROCEDURE:

Yancey County Jail reasonably provides medical, dental, and mental heaith services to
inmates as circumstances dictate. In providing these medical services, the custody and
control of inmates is not neglected. .

Inmates have a right to refuse routine medical attention. Uncooperative or disruptive
inmates may not be suitable candidates for routine medical attention. Such refusals or
uncooperatlve actions are documented.

Initial Intake Evaluation:

1. Inmates brought into the facility are mechcaily evaluated within a reasonable
period of time.

2. Arriving detainees determmed to be in need of crifical or emergency medical,
mental, or dental care, are riot be accepted into the fac:hty and remain in the
custody of the arresting or transporting officer.

3. Arriving detainees that indicate they are in need of prescription medication and
who do not have the prescribed medication may not be accepted into the facility
until the arresting or transporting officer has an opportunity to secure the
medication or can show that the prescription is not valid or required.

4. During the initial contact, the jail officer asks the detainee, are you ill; are you
injured; are you under critical medical care?

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA
This data is proprietary and will not be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed without the written permission of this agency. Data subject
to this restriction is contained throughout this publication.

Page 1 of 5




m.u"i

——

5.

9.

" [ Jail and Detention Policies and Procedures, 11.01 Health Care Services |

If he or she answers yes to any of these questions or there is good reason to
suspect that critical care is indicated, the detainee is not accepted and remains
in the custody of the arresting or transporting officer.

. Facility staff may recommend that transporting or arresting officers transport

their detainee to the appropnate medical, mental, or dental facility for treatment.
Detainees showing signs or known to be mentally incompetent are not accepted,
if alternative mental health facilities are available. _ _
Before the booking process is completed, personnel will complete a medical
screening of the detainee and complete the medical portion of the intake form.
Detainees who claim to be infected with a communicable disease are isolated
from the general population, pending further medical evaluation.

10. Reasonable efforts are made to acquire professional assistance in processing

detainees with special disabilities. If qualified professionals are available, they

- should be summoned to assist, or contacted through a communications device.

11. Observation and evaluation of the physical and mental condition of detainees

continues through each phase of intake, including searches, dressnng out, and/or
showers.

12. Any medical alert tags wormn by the detainee are noted on the medical screening
., and book-in sheets. The inmate is allowed to wear the medical alert tag, as long

as there in no reasonable concern for security or safety.

Emergency Health Care and First Aid: .

The facility maintains at least one fully stocked first aid kit and patient evacuation
equipment at the facility that is accessible to officers. Ideally, at least one officer per shift is
frained in emergency first aid and is able to demonstrate proficiency in the rendering first
aid to inmates and fellow officers in the event of a medica/ emergency. With the advent of
a medical emergency, the responding officer that is first aid proficient will:

1.
2.
3.
4,

5.
6.

Assist the injured person(s), and instruct other officers to call for professional
medical assistance, as needed;

Isolate or remove the injured party to a secure and safe area, if the injuries allow
movement;

Provide basic first aid to the injured party such as stop the bleeding, protect the
wound, and treaf for shock;

Make the injured party as comfortable as possible untll other medical help
arrives;

Provide security for the injured party untit help arrives; &

Refer to Medical Emergency policy.

Medication:
All medications are taken from the inmate during admission and kept in a secure location.
Additionally:

1.

Medications are to determine content, and verify validity and appropriateness of
the prescription;

This daia is proprietary and will not be duplicated, disciosed, or discussed without the wiitten permission of this agency. Dafa subject

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA

te this restriction is contained throughout this publication.

. Page20f3




e

| Jail and Detention Policies and'ProCedures, 11.0'1 Health Care Services,

.‘-"‘:"*.‘*’!‘J

b

8-..
 claimed once they are released.
9.

'Determme if alternatlve medications are md!cated

Prescription medications are issued only by aphysician’s instruction; -
An established receipt system for issuance of medication to the inmate; &
A responsmle officer distributes the medication to the inmates and documents

- the issuing of medications onto 2 MARS sheet and ensures the mmate takes i,

as directed.

Qver the counter medlcatlons may be purchased by the inmate form canteen
services. The amount of medication that can be purchased will be set by the
Chief Jailer and medical provider.

Medication for male inmates is to be stored and locked in the medical cart. |
Medication for female inmates will be stored and Iocked in the medication

‘cabinet located in the booking area.

All reaming medications ordered dunng an |nmates incarceration can be

If an inmate bnngs thelr own medlcatlon to the facility they can be c!almed once'
released.

10. Al uncla:med prescnbed medlca‘slons will be dlsposed of,

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA

This data is propnetary and wiil not be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed without the written permission of this agency Data subject

to this restriction is contained throughout this publication.

Page 3 of 3




P
Y
1

O (515@ o—"

5219(

'ancey County 10
Jail and Detention O@ o? w’éba

Pohcles and Procedures

Subject: Sick Call : | Policy Number: 11.02

Issue Date:02/01/2018

Approval Authority
Title and Signature:

_ARevision Da _

POLICY:

Yancey County Jail provides each inmate with regular access to health care services from

a qualified provider to screen, refer, and prov:de basic treatment for ongoing or emerging
heatth care problems. '

PENOLOGICAL_ INTEREST:

- . _ltisnthe penological interest of this facility to provide reasonable and necessary medical

care to inmates, through a series of medical services such as regularly scheduled sick
- calls.

DEFNITION: |
». Sick Call - An organized method of treating inmate health problems through a regularly
scheduied open house. Sick call provides inmates with the opportunity to report a

medical iliness or other health problem and to receive diagnosis or treatment to:
alleviate the condition, if reasonably possible.

PROCEDURE:

Scheduling:
Inmate medical compilaints are solicited daily through a request slip or form system acted

on by staff personnel, and foliowed by approprlate triage, and treatment by qualified
personnel

Sickcall is scheduled on a regular basis and the schedule may change from time to time to
meet the penological interests of the facility. A physician, or other qualified medical
professional is accessible to the general poputation inmates and conducts sick call on an
established schedule. The person conducting sick call will, if reasonably possible:

1. Examine the inmate to the extent necessary to ascertain the nature of the problem
2. Provide appropriate treatment; ‘
3. Schedule the inmate for further examination or treatment;

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA
Thsdata is prcpnetary and shall not be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed without the written permission of this agency. Data
subject to this restriction is contained throughout this publication.

Page 1 of 3




LRRT J S

| Jail and Detention Policies and Procedures, 11.02 Sick Call

4.

5.

Refer the mmate for transfer to the facility CllnIC or appropnate hospltal when
necessary; & _
Arrange for immediate transfer to approprlate faclhty, clinic, or hospital i in medical
emergenc:es :

Process:

A member of the facmty staﬁ’ may assist the sick call ofﬁcer with inmate control and
scheduling. The staff member conducting the sick cali or the aSS|st|ng officer maintains
sick call records.

‘ Medlcal Co-Pay:
1.
2.
3.

Inmates will have a medical screemng upon arrival.

Female inmates who are pregnant will have full access to medical care.
Emergency medical care is available and provided to inmates at any time. The
inmate will be charged with a fee when they are provided with non-emergency care.

. Non-emergency care is defined as a symptom or injury that is not life threatemng,

and this determination will be made by the Chief Jailer.
Sick call will be conducted on a daily basis Monday-Friday. For an lnmate to be

- seen at sick call the inmate must obtain a Medical Request Form from a Jailer on

7.

8.
9.

duty. Inmates will submit completed sick call forms to the Jailer on duty. The jailer
will file the request for review and scheduling. If an inmate fails to complete the
medical request form or misses an appointment for any reason, they must wait until
the next scheduled sick call day. Inmate initiated contact during sick call, which
results in any medical evaluation will be documented and cons:dered a sick call.
Medical Fee Schedule:

a. Sick Call $20.00

b. Medication co- payment for one medication $10. 00

¢. Medication co-payment for two or more medications $20. 00
There will be no charges for the following services:

a. Initial screening during arrest processing.

b. Follow-up treatments/test ordered by medical professionals.

c. Medical emergencies as determined by the Chief Jailer.

d. Use of force, inmate confrontations and, and restraint checks.
All reaming medications ordered during an inmate’s incarceration can be cla:med
once they are released.
If you bring your own medication to the facility they can be clalmed once released.

-All unctaimed prescribed medications will be disposed of.

Review of Sick Call:
A physician reviews sick call requests and records on a regular basis. Revuews may
include:

1.
2.
3

An exammatlon of records;
Referrals made by the sick call personnel
Discussion with the staff member who conducted sick call; &

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA

This data is propristary and shall not be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed without the written permission of this agency. Data

subject to this restriction is contained throughout this publication.

Page 2 of 3




L ,
g

[ Jail and Detention Policies and Procedures, 11.02 Sick Call

4. Actual e)camination of the inmate, if n'écessary.

A

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA
This data ts proprietary and shali not be dupiicated, disclosed, of discussed without the written permission of this agency. Data
. subject to this restriction is contained thraughout this publication.

Page 30f3




i

H i
pC—

CXaloklio ty B
o - |28
Yancey County 2 Ag /;20 a0

“Jail and Detention
" Policies and Procedures

- Subjeét: Suicide Prevention | Policy Number: 11.03

| Issue Date:02/01/2018 : Revision Date:

Approval Authority - )
Title and Signature: : ééfw z: g Z

POLICY: | | Shenff of Yancey County

It is the policy_of- the Yancey County Jail to be observant to the threat of suicide among
inmates and to directly intervene in suicide attempts, whenever reasonably possible

PENOLOGICAL INTEREST: -

ltisin the penological interest of this detention facility to provide reasonable and necessary
security, safety, and oversight of inmates that are perceived to be at serious risk of suicide
or self infiicted injuries.

DEFINITIONS:

o Mentally ill - The condition of a person afflicted with mental disease to such an extent
that he or she requires care and treatment for his or her own safety or the safety of
~ others. '

 Mentally retarded - The condition of a person afflicted with substantial sub-average |
general intellectual functioning that is associated with impairment in adaptive behavior.

* Mentally impaired inmate - An inmate who is mentally ill or mentally retarded.

. Su:c:de the intentional and voluntary act of a person taking or attempting to take his
‘or her own life.

DISCUSSION:

“For most reasonably thinking individuals, being incarcerated in jail is a traumatic

experience. As a consequence, many individuals taken into custody and confined in a jail
exhibit some forms of abnormal behavior during in-processing and the early stages of
confinement. This behavior is to be expected and is not necessarily indicative of, or a
predictor of suicide.” Changes in inmate behavior have many causes, many of which have
nothing to do with jail life. An inmate may feel his famlly has abandoned him, loss of a _|0b

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA
This data is proprietary and shall not be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed without the written permission of this agency. Data
subject to this restriction is contained throughout this publication.

Page10of4




g

| Jail and Detention Policies and Proeedures, 11.03 Suicide Prevention

perceived change in social status, or detoxification may alter behavior. However, this does
not necessarily transiate to a higher threat of suicide. Mood swings and behavioral
changes make the job of the jail staff even more drfﬁcutt when it comes to watching for or
trying to prevent su:mde by mmates

Psychiatnsts and psycho!oglsts do not—agree on, nor have a demonstrated means of
predicting or preventing suicide attempts by their patients, in or out of the jail setting. Your

~ job in trying te predict and prevent suicide by inmates is not an easy task. Often our best

tools in deterring suicide aitempts is a. .caring, thoughtful word, positive reinforcement,
Ilstenmg to reports from fellow inmates or officers, and observed behavior.

Suicide attempts take many forms; however, the actor’s goal is ending ones own life. The
actual attempt may be long in planning or the result of an impulse that takes only a few
seconds or minutes from decision through execution. The inmate may appear normal in
one instance and carrying out his plan of self-destruction the next. Officers are cautioned
to be watchful for three basic modes of suicide. This is often referred to as the suicidal
triad. This triad consists of:

1. Su:c;de Inmate wishing to take his own life performs the act.

2. Homicide — Act is performed by a fellow inmate for a variety of reasons, with the
knowledge and assistance of the suicidal inmate.

3. Suicide by COP — Suicidal inmate may try to set up a scenario or scheme where
officers will be forced to use deadly force, orkilt the inmate because of some action
he [the inmate] purposely instigates.

Jail staff may be alert to possible indicatore' of potentially suicidarl inmates, by such things
as: ‘ ' ' '

Past history of suicide attempts; 7

'Active discussion of suicide plans:

Sudden drastic change in eating, sleeping, or other personal habits;

Recent crisis in personal events, such as an extended or life sentencing; &

Loss of interest in activities or relationships the inmate had previously engaged in.

Al

PROCEDURE:

An important part of the suicide prevention program is integrated into the inmate admission
and classification. processes. Comments and suggestions by arresting officers, observed

" behavior, inmate responses to questions, and signs of self inflicted wounds are all possible
clues that may aid the intake officer in assessing the threat of imminent suicide.

When any officer perceives that an inmate is suicidal or homu:tdal the observing officer,
will: -

1. Place the inmate on a suicide watch

2. Notify the floor staff of the watch condltlon

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA
This data is proprietary and shall not be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed without the written permission of this agency. Data
subject to this restriction is contained throughout this pubiication.

Page 2 of 4




o)

Qe

RSN

{Jail 'and Detention Policies and Pro.cedures, 11.03 Suicide Prevention

3 Start a watch log; & -
4, Notrfy the Chief Jal[er or superv:sor of the watch condmon

The Shift Super\nsor or Chlef Jailer will consider the reasoning behmd placing the
inmate on a suicide watch, observed behavior, and other factors; and, will make a

determination as to continuing, altering, or discontmumg the wafch. The Chief Jailer '
will also:

1. While awaiting medical assistance, the inmate may be held in medical Jocked or

walch status [if fac:lmes are available] and will be more frequently observed by
staff. :

2. Once a medical or psychiatric evaluation is completed the Chief Jailer will be
notified by the medical professional if changes in the normal watch procedure
are required or recommended. The recommendations of the medical

.professional will be followed for the period indicated. The Chief Jailer will
. communicate with the physician(s) regarding any major change in the inmate’s
beha\nor or status.

3. Not later than seventy-two [72] hours after receiving evidence or a statement
that may establish reasonable cause that a person committed to.the Yancey '
County Jail's custody has a mental illness [inciuding being suicidal] or is a
petson with mental retardation, the Chief Jailer or Shift Supervisor on behalf of
the Yancey County Jail will notlfy a magistrate of that fact, requesting a mentat
_health status determination by the court. This notification will be in writing and
on department letterhead.

If a perceived or actual crisis arises after regular operating hours or on weekends or
holidays, and the inmate is likely to require commitment to a mental heaith treatment
facility, the Chief Jailer or Shift Supervisor will be notified and will confer on the
recommended transfer.

The Watch: - -
Inmates. determined by competent medical authority tobe a surc:de risk will be placed in
wafch status, or placed in general population depending on the recommendations of the

physician(s). If suicidal, the inmate will be under watch by at least one officer. This watch
can be on a continuous basis or with frequent checks of at least every thirty [30] minutes.

During these inspections, the officer will visually observe the inmate.

The inspection or watch can be performed with closed circuit television [CCTV), if the
facility is so equipped. If CCTV is used, the officer must be able to see the inmate on the
CCTV monitor and hear the sounds in-the room through periodic checks.

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA
This data is propnetary and shali not be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed without the written permission of this agency. Dala
subject to this resiriction is contained throughout this publication.

Page 3 of 4




. | Jail and Detention PoIiCies 'a.nd Procedures, 11.03 Suicide Prevention ' ]

Regardless of the method of observation, off icer(s) assigned these dutles will. record the
inspections in a logbook. Any unusual activity or behavior should be recorded in the fog,
and periodically reported to senior or medlcal staff as deemed approprlate by the observing
officer. : .

'Dunng the ‘watch, potentially harmful items such as razor blades, belts, shoelaces,

matches, pens, pencils, mirrors, glasses, and any sharp tems should be removed from the
inmate and the cell in which he or she is placed. Staff are reminded that removal of such

items from the immediate area of an inmate does not provide guarantees that the inmate

can not or will. not atte\mpt suicide by other means. For example, one of the most common
means of suicide by inmates is strangulation or hanging by using bed clothing, or parts of
clothing. Likewise, paper jumpsuits or gowns can also be used to commit suicide.-

Yet, to place an inmate in a room void of blankets, bedding, clothing, or other basic
-amenities of life for an extended period of time -is considered cruel and unusual

punishment, and is therefore forbidden by the U.S. Constitution. Again, our best tools in
deterring suicide attempts may be a caring thoughtful word, positive reinforcement, reports
from fellow inmates or officers, observed behavior, and trying to get the inmate mvolved
with facmty actlvmes other inmates, or productive work.

Written reports of any suicide attempts or perceived threats of suicide will be forwarded to

the Chief Jailer or Shift Supervisor as a priority.

- RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA :
This data is proprietary and shall not be duplicated, disciosed, or discussed without the written permission of this agency. Data -
subject to this restriction is contained throughout this publication.

Page 4 of 4




R

%d@cfy/n/b
o248 -

Jail and Detention Og{ Q (g-;)baa

Policies and Procedure

Subject: Mental Health Care -+ | Policy Number: 11.04
| Issue Date:02/01/2018 — | Revision Date:
Approval Authbrity .
Title and Signature: .
POLICY: | o | Shenff of Yancey County

Yancey County Jail provides treatment, services, and temporary housing for inmates who
display or have been diagnosed as having mental health problems. In such cases, mental
health care is provided at a reasonable and cost efficient basis, consistent with budgetary
and facilities available.

PENOLOGICAL INTEREST:

It is in the penclogical interest of this detention faciity to provide reasonable and necessary
security and safety standards, control, supervision, and oversight of inmates while conﬁned
to this facility, including those inmates with mental health problems.

PROCEDURE:

Inmates committed to Yancey County Jail are normally screened to include questions and
observations intended to identify mentally impaired inmates who may have problems .
adapting to the detention setting, or who may be imminently dangerous to themselves or
others. Staff will observe inmates throughout their incarceration in an effort to identify
possible mental health problems. In a situation in which the inmate may present an-
imminent danger to self or others, staff may take appropriate action to ensure the safety of
inmates and staff [such as using restraints].

DEFINITIONS:

s Mentally ill - The condition of a person afflicted with mental disease to such an extent
that he or she requires care and treatment for his or her own safety or the safety of
others. '

+ Mentally retarded - The condition of a person afflicted with substantial sub-average
general intellectual functioning that is associated with impairment in adaptive behavior.

» Mentally impaired inmate - An inmate who is mentally ill or mentally retarded.

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA
This data is proprietary and shali not be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed without the written germission of this agency. Data
subjsct to this restriction is contained throughout this publication.

Page 1 6f-3‘




paw

| Jail and Detention Policies and Procedures, 11.04 Mental Health Care

‘Mental Health Screenmg

On admission, the intake staff evaluates each inmate forobvious SIgns of mental illness or
retardation. When a staff member suspects an inmate is mentally impaired, they notify the
Chief Jailer or Shift Supervisor for instructions. Additional dlagnostzc tests or examinations

may be ordered. Pending this review, an inmate demonsfrating signs of serious mental
. illlness may be housed in administrative or medical segregated housing or transported

elsewhere.

Officers should be alert to possible indicators of acute mental {Hliness, mcludlng the

following:

1. Systematlzed de|u3|ons of persecutions, W|th the rest of the personal:ty remammg
- relatively intact;

2.. Delusions of grandeur and/or persecutlon ora constant attitude of suspicions and

~ hostility;
3. Intense anxiety or exaggerated levels of fear or panic in the absence of any real or
present danger;
4. Inappropriate emotional responses snllness bizarre de!usmns or unpredictable,
hollow giggling;

5. Hallucinations such as hearing, seeing, tastlng orsmelhng something or some one
- that is not present at the moment;
8. Extreme depression, withdrawal, neglect of hygiene and appearance, refusal to eat
or leave: the cell for iong periods of time, or periods of uncontrollable crying; &,
'7.. Exaggerated mood swings from elation and over activity to depression and under
activity or a combination or alternation of these.

Inmates exhibiting psycho_tib or dangerous behavior that appear to originate from mental
fliness are referred for evaluation.

Following an additional evaluation from physician medical professional, the evaluation is
entered in the inmate’s medical file. This report may make recommendations on the
monitoring, observation, and handhng of the inmate. These care recommendations are not
nomally overridden. The exception may be for security considerations, and additional
protection of the inmate or others. Any question regarding potential conflicts bétween

these medical recommendations and a possible compromise of secunty are resolved
between the Chief Jailer, and the' prescribing medical professional.

Reportmg Mental Health Conditions to the Court:

Not later than seventy-two [72] hours after receiving evidence or a statement that may
establish reasonable cause that a person committed to the Yancey County Jail's custody
has a mental illness [including being suicidalj or is-a person with mental retardation, the:
Chief Jailer on behalf of the Yancey County Jail will notify a magistrate of that fact,
requesting a mental health status determination by the court. This nofification will be in
writing and on department letterhead.

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA '
This data is proprietary and shall not be duplicated, disclosed, or discussed without the written permission of this agency. Data
subject to this restriction is contained throughout this publication,

Page 2 of 3




Ry

| Jail and Detention Policies and Procedures, 11.04 Mental Health Care

Crisis Intervention: - :

When an inmate exhibits- behavror that is suicidal, homicidal, or otherwise extremely
inappropriate, ‘the staff should request medical assistance. As a result of this evaluation -
the inmate may be placed on a suicide watch, .Under the condition of a suicide watch,

inmates are placed on a program intended to reasonably protect the individual from self- .
destructlon This process is dlscussed in an associated pollcy and procedure.

If a potential mental health crisis arises after regular operating hours, on weekends, or
holidays and is likely to require commitment to a regular mental heaith treatment facrhty
the Shift Supervisor or Chief Jailer. While awaiting medical assistance, the inmate may be
held in medical locked unit status and/or closely observed by staff.

Transfers for Mental Health Treatment

Prior to a non-emergency transfer of any inmate to a mental health facrllty the consulting
mental health specialist maklng the referral will prepare a written report to be transported
with the inmate. The Shift Supervisor or Chief Jailer will ordinarily be consufted in advance
of the transfer and prowded the specific reasons for thetransfer.

Psychotropic Drugs: -
Administration of psychotropic drugs such as anti- pSychotrcs antidepressants, andlor
drugs requiring special handling are administered under the direction of a physician or
person specifically authorized by the physician and is given only in accordance with written
instructions listed in the medical file. Officers assigned to distribute medication ensure that
the intended inmate consumes the drugs. Any refusal fo take prescribed medication is
recorded and the medical staff advised before the next sick call, unless the inmate’s
behavior reasonably indicates immediate notification is appropriate.

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA
This data is propnetary and shall not be duplicated, disclosed, ordiscussed without the written permrssron of this ageney. Data
subject to this restriction is contzined throughout this publication.

Page 30f3




E—

(/\mw" e

Yancey County D{a € CQ (Q &b&o
Jail and Detention

Pohmes and’ Procedures

Subject: Déntal Sérviées T .';.'Pol_ncy-Number:'ﬁ.OS -

Issue Date%02101'12b1v8 - Revision Date:

Appféyal Authority — '

Title and Signature: o L
.POILIC.Y: - o Sheﬂff of Yancey Cmmty

. Yancey County Jail féc:h"ty encbufagés inmates to exercise good dental ‘hygien’e by

providing toothbrushes and tooth paste, as well as aceess to emergency and essentiai
dental services while they are incarcerated.

PENOLOGICAL ,INTERE_ST:

Yancey County Jail has a penological ihtereSt in maintaining health and encouraging
improved hyglene among inmates. This includes reasonable and necessary emergency
dental services.

PROGEDURE'

Daily Mamtenance of Teeth & Gums:

Inmates are encouraged o exercise good dental hygienewhile they are mcarcerated in thls‘

facmty As a part of this support, the facility provides toothbrushes and tooth paste to
inmates who do-not otherwise have access 1o these healthcare items.

Fees may be char_ged to mmate_s for dental services and related professional care.

RESTRICTED LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA
This datais propnetary and shall not be dupiicated, disclosed, or discussed without the writlen permission of this agency. Data
subject to this restriction is contained throughout this publication.

Page 1 of 1




To the Yancey County Commissioners:

Property owner owning property that has ingress and egress with said drive off of Cane Branch Rd SR 1146 has
met or exceeded the requirements needed to have a drive named under the Yancey County Road Naming
Procedure.

Under the Yancey County Addressing and Road Naming Ordinance Section 2.26 “Notice of Action for All Roads” and
2.27 Mobile Home Parks, Condominiums, Planned Units Developments, Apartments, Public Housing Developments
and Travel Trailer Parks. “Section (B)”. The said owner of Property in the Cane Branch Community has met or
exceeded the Yancey County 911 Road Naming requirements for their driveway under Section 2.26 Road Naming
Procedures for Private Roads.

ROAD NAMING

2.20 AUTHORITY

This section is adopted under the authority and provisions of G.S. §§ 153A-45, 153A-47, 153A-121, 153A-238, and 153A-239.1, and
any applicable local modifications thereto.

2.23 DUTIES OF THE ADDRESSING COORDINATOR

2.25 ROAD NAMING PROCEDURES FOR PRIVATE ROADS AND PUBLIC ROADS

(A) In the event that there are private or public roads which have no name on file with Addressing Coordinator, that department shall first
determine if at least 80% of lands owners adjacent to the road are in agreement as to a particular name. In the event of such agreement

that an agreement has not been reached by at least 80% of adjacent land owners asto a particular name, that department shall make a
name recommendation to the County Board of Commissioners which shall thereupon hold a Public hearing, upon at least ten days prior
notice published once in a newspaper of general circulation in the county setting forth the time, place, and subject matter of the public
hearing. In addition, the Board of Commissioners shall cause the notice to be posted at the County Courthouse and in at least two public
places in the township in which the road is located.

(€ CAMPERS/RV’s/MOTORHOMES. Are Not eligible for the road naming process. It will be up to the discretion of the Addressing
Coordinator for the final decision of this process.

2.26 NOTICE OF ACTION FOR ALL ROADS

The Addressing Coordinator is authorized to determine the need for road names and name changes and to
recommend such additions or changes to the County Commissioners for both private and public roads within any area of the county subject
to this ordinance.



2.2 MOBILE HOME PARKS, CONDOMINIUMS, PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS, APARTMENTS,
PUBLIC HOUSING DEVELOPMENTS AND, TRAVEL TRAILER PARKS.

(A) Where county records are incomplete, the owners of existing mobile home parks, condominiums, planned unit developments,
apartments, public housing developments and, travel trailer parks shall, upon request of the Addressing and Mapping Department,
submit a legible and accurate map of their development, including but not limited to the location, name, and width of each
roadway. Each building within the development must also be identified.

(B) If street names are being requested for a Development/Subdivision, the applicant must submit a digital or a legible full sized printed
plan (minimum 18”x24”) for the development. If the development/subdivision is a multiphase development/subdivision a copy of
the master plan will be required as well. Addresses will not be given until the subdivision platis approved by the Addressing and
Mapping Department.

(C) Developers that are supplying their own road signs, are responsible for the cost of material and installation of the new 911 street
signs. All 911 street signs and installations will follow the Yancey County Addressing and Road Na ming Ordinance and the North Ca rolina of
Department of Transportation Guidelines.

It is my recommendation for the section of private drive that comes off of Cane Branch Rd SR 1146 and
contains all person’s property in the signed petition be named: Highland Meadows Rdg

Mark Thomas
Yancey County
Address Coordinator



To the General Public, 2/5/2021

Under the Yancey County Addressing and Road Naming Ordinance Section 2.26 “Notice of Action for All
Roads” and 2.27 Mobile Home Parks, Condominiums, Planned Units Developments, Apartments, Public
Housing Developments and Travel Trailer Parks. Section (B). The said owner of property in the Cane Branch
Community has met or exceeded the Yancey County 911 Road Naming requirements for their driveway under
Section 2.26 Road Naming Procedures for Private Roads. The property owner/developers driveway that
comes off of Cane Branch Rd would like to name their roadway: Highland Meadows Rdg.

Mark Thomas

Yancey County

Address Coordinator

GIS Technician

110 Town SqRm 7

Burnsville, NC 28714

828-682-1813
Mark.Thomas@yanceycountync.gov




STREET NAME APPLICATION FORM

Yancey County Addressing and Mapping Department
email: addressing@yanceycountync.gov '
110 Town Sq Room 7
Burnsville, NC 28714
Phone: 828-682-1813

Proposed Name of Road: Highland Meadows Rdg.
Beginning at (cross street): Cane Branch Rd — SR 1146
Is this street in a subdivision? Yes If yes, subdivision name: The Homes at Black Mountain Ridge

*Note: If a developer is supplying the road signs they are responsible for the cost of materials and installation of
the new 911 street name signs. All 911 street signs and installations will follow the Yancey County Addressing and
Road Naming Ordinance and the North Carolina Department of Transportation guidelines.

Applicant’s Name: Matthew Remillard

Address: 57 S Pinnacle Dr. Burnsville, NC 28714

Telephone: 3862996842

I am in favor of the proposed street name change.

Printed Name Address Day Phone

—Matthew Remillard 57 S Pinnacle Dr. Burnsville, NC 28714 386-299-6842 4

*Note: The applicant is responsible for recording development plats, including any associated fees.

authority.

Application Requirements: A Street Name Application must be circulated among affected property owners. The
Street Name Application must contain names, addresses, and signatures of all affected property owners. An
affected property owner is one who owns an interest in property adjacent to the street. At least 80% of the
affected property owners, must sign the application in order to initiate the street name process as deemed by

final approval.

Return completed application and petition of property owners to:
Yancey County Addressing and Mapping Department

STANDARDS FOR STREET NAME




it \u‘ \A\. \Q\\“:\\ .\k
. ‘\\ \\“‘\\\\J\?‘\\\)\\F
l) ¥ I

N

e

MR {
///:/;ﬂ////
=

T, /
g f.fiéf 7

.
s
s

o
)
% I/'jz""."f’ 4

5,'//: / /

7

L
I?:/;?;‘Hﬂ e Y / / //-"f 5
LS 2 sl
LY, ,ﬁ/%a il
o

i {{[//[ -, {/(f// 07
i Sy B

v
g
Xy

ﬁ'//’l.




PROCILAMATION

AMERICAN RED CROSS MONTH 2021

WHEREAS, March is American Red Cross Month, a special time to honor the kindness of our neighbors who aid
families in need every day in Yancey County, across the United States and around the world. Their dedication
touches millions of [ives each year as they carry out the organization’s 140-year mission of preventing and
alleviating suffering.

WHEREAS, during the trying times of the coronavirus pandemic, people have stepped up to help others in need,
whether it was responding to this year’s record-breaking disasters across the country or rolling up their sleeves to
give blood when our country faced a severe blood shortage.

WHEREAS, here in Western North Carolina, local families relied on volunteers for comfort and hope. Last year,
358 local American Red Cross volunteers responded to 198 home fires and local disasters, educated over 1,100
people in community preparedness, installed 600 smoke alarms, provided 950 services to military members and
their families, and helped collect over 24,000 units of lifesaving blood products.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, this lifesaving work is vital to strengthening our community’s
resilience. Nearly 200 years since the birth of American Red Cross founder Clara Barton, we dedicate this month
of March to all those who continue to advance her noble legacy, and we ask others to join in their commitment to
care for people in need.

Adopted, this the 8" day of March 2021.

ATTEST: JEFF WHITSON, Chairman

SONYA MORGAN,
Clerk to the Board of Commissioners

(county seal)



Board of Equalization and Review 2021

Jeff Whitson
Mark Ledford
Jill Austin

David Grindstaff
Johnny Riddle
Byrl Ballew
Danny MclIntosh
Margaret Pierce
Jerri Storie

Bill Wheeler

Jamie McMahan



YANCEY COUNTY TAX ADMINISTRATION

End of Month Breakout

Outstanding Balances through 02/28/2021

Description Total
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Balances
Balances
County Vehicle Tax $39,987.22
$5,587.66 $14,218.15 $15,256.87 $4,924.54
$499.48 $502.73 $36.00
BURNSVILLE FIRE DISTRICT Vehicle Tax $1,106.71
$281.59 $245.85 $523.35 $56.92
CANE RIVER FIRE DISTRICT Vehicle Tax $312.00
$137.60 $166.03 $8.37
EGYPT FIRE DISTIRCT Vehicle Tax $116.50
$68.96 $47.14 $0.40
RAMSEYTOWN FIRE DISTRICT Vehicle Tax $11.17
$6.41 $0.82 $3.94
GREEN MOUNTAIN FIRE DISTRICT Vehicle Tax $261.85
$151.60 $100.07 $1.18
JACKS CREEK FIRE DISTRICT Vehicle Tax $303.11
$205.81 $24.84 $40.51 $31.95
BRUSH CREEK FIRE DISTRICT Vehicle Tax $99.15
$41.24 $57.91
CRABTREE FIRE DISTRICT Vehicle Tax $610.09
$72.92 $307.68 $193.67 $35.82
SOUTH TOE FIRE DISTRICT Vehicle Tax $370.41

$18.14 $221.98 $115.29 $15.00




PENSACOLA FIRE DISTRICT Vehicle Tax

$356.56

$136.96 $141.90 $77.70

PRICES CREEK FIRE DISTRICT Vehicle Tax $273.26
$4.86 $28.70 $65.53 $174.17

County Vehicle Interest $7,918.15
$656.96 $1,929.91 $3,435.92 $1,895.36

TOWN OF BURNSVILLE Vehicle Interest $175.48
$60.49 $100.77 $14.22

BURNSVILLE FIRE DISTRICT Vehicle Interes $215.14
$33.19 $35.19 $126.74 $20.02

CANE RIVER FIRE DISTRICT Vehicle Interes $51.96
$17.78 $32.14 $2.04

EGYPT FIRE DISTIRCT Vehicle Interest $18.39
$8.55 $9.83 $0.01

RAMSEYTOWN FIRE DISTRICT Vehicle Interes $1.64
$0.60 $0.02 $1.02

GREEN MOUNTAIN FIRE DISTRICT Vehicle Int $41.32
$18.89 $21.96 $0.47

JACKS CREEK FIRE DISTRICT Vehicle Intere $52.61
$24.02 $4.26 $11.66 $12.57

BRUSH CREEK FIRE DISTRICT Vehicle Intere $17.21

$5.50 $11.71

CRABTREE FIRE DISTRICT Vehicle Interest $104 .42
$8.61 $40.18 $42.29 $13.34

SQUTH TOE FIRE DISTRICT Vehicle Interest $61.48
$2.19 $30.48 $23.89 $4.92

PENSACOLA FIRE DISTRICT Vehicle Interest $80.96
$18.13 $33.84 $28.99

PRICES CREEK FIRE DISTRICT Vehicle Inter $92.63
$0.62 $6.15 $17.87 $67.99

DMV Vehicle Interest $597.51
$185.10 $60.73 $190.65 $161.03




Totals $54,275.04
$7,081.67 $18,326.29 $21,280.11 $7,586.97

03/02/2021



Yancey County Tax Office Run Date: 03-02-2021

County/District Collection Percentage Report
As of: 02-28-2021

2020
County
Net Levy $ Collections $ Collections %

12,880,995.61 11,98C,830.74 93.02
Districts
Name Net Levy § Collections $ Collections %
001 - BURNSVILLE FIRE DISTRICT 218,803.14 206,378.84 94,33
002 - CANE RIVER FIREKE DISTRICT 70,536.36 66,081.06 83.69
003 - EGYPT FIRE DISTIRCT 77,874.62 73,690.41 94.63
004 - RAMSEYTOWN FIRE DISTRICT 24,269,997 21,497.24 88.58
005 - GREEN MQUNTAIN FIRE DISTRICT 26,958.38 23,356.57 86.64
006 - JACKS CREEK FIRE DISTRICT 67,221.7% 61,743.62 91.86
007 - BRUSH CREEK FIRE DISTRICT 40,158.44 37,497.99 93.38
008 - CRABTREE FIRE DISTRICT 176,511.52 160,418.92 90.89
0% - SOUTH TOE FIRE DISTRICT 194,166.62 181,190.67 93.32
01¢ - PENSACQOLA FIRE DISTRICT 94,014.88 89,142.82 94 .82
011 - PRICES CREEK FIRE DISTRICT 165,025.46 155,523.8¢ 94 .25
District Totals

Net Levy $ Collections $ Collections %
1,155,541.18 1,076,522.00 93.16

Personal Property:



Billed UnCollected Collected Percent Collected Percent Not Collected
1,067,611.89 33,225.36 1,034,386.53 96,888 3.112



Posting Report 03-02-2021
02-01-2021 to 02-28-2021 2:51 PM

I. Tax Collections + Releases

Year General Fund Burnsville West Yancey Egypt/Ramseytown Clearmont  Double Island Newdale South Toe Pensacola TOTAL
2011 50.00 $0.00 50.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2012 $111.31 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 50.00 $0.00 50.00 $111.31
2013 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 30.00 $0.00 $0.00 50.00 $0.00 $0.00
2014 50.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 50.00 $0.00 50.00 50.00 $0.00
2015 50.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2016 $34.38 $0.00 $0.00 $50.00 $2.87 $0.00 50.00 $0.00 50.00 $37.25
2017 $160.86 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13.41 $0.00 50.00 $0.00 $0.00 $174.27
2018 5$937.39 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10.9%0 $0.00 50.00 $0.00 $20.88 5969.17
2019 56,467.92 $217.09 $518.52 50.00 $49.06 $2.43 $123.14 50.00 $71.81 $6,949.97
2020 $181,141.10 53,544, 54 $3,037.61 $887.32 $1,539.28 $575.18 $2,845.57 $3,187.49 5629.31 $197,387.40
TOTAL $188,852.96 $3,761.63 $3,056.13 $887.32 51,615:52 2577561 52,968,771 $3,187.49 $722.00 $205,629.37

Il. Releases

Current Year Prior Year TOTAL
General Fund $366.07 $0.00 $366.07
Burnsville $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
West Yancey $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Egypt/Ramseytown $0.00 50.00 50.00
Clearmont $0.00 $0.00 50.00

Double Island $0.00 50.00 $0.00



Newdale $0.00 30.00 50,00

South Toe $0.00 50.00 50.00

Pensacola $0.0C $0.00 $0.00

TOTAL $366.07 50,00 $366.0G7

lll. Net Tax Collections

Year General Fund Burnsville West Yancey Egypt/Ramseytown Clearmont  Double lsland Newdale South Tos Pensacola TOTAL
TOTAL 5188,486.89 $3,761.63 $53,056.13 5887.32 51,615.52 5577.61 $2,9608.71 $3,187.49 $722.00 $205,263.30




Transaction Type Report

02-01-2021 to 02-28-2021

Year General Fire Penalty Waste Additional Fees Principal Interost Advertising Cost Legal Cost Total
2011 50,00 50.00 30,00 50.00 50,00 $0.00 §71.14 30.00 50,00 $71.44
2012 $111.31 $0.00 $0.00 50.00 $0.00 $111.31 $73.10 $0.00 $0.00 $124.41
2013 30,00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 $50.00 $108.47 50.00 $0.00 $108.47
2014 $G.00 50.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $71.44 $6.00 $0.00 $71.44
2015 $0.00 $0.00 30.00 $0.00 $0.00 50.00 $71.414 50.00 571.449 $142.88
2016 $34.38 $2.87 $3.72 $0.00 $0.00 540,97 3158,85 30.00 50,00 $189.82
2017 5160.86 $13.41 $6.00 $0.00 $0.00 $174.27 $50.04 50.00 50.00 $224.31
2018 $937.39 $31.78 50.00 50.00 $0.00 5969,17 5152.44 38.00 $0.00 $1,122.61
2019 $6,467.92 $482.05 $0.98 $0.00 $0.00 $6,950.35 $827.44 $68.00 50.00 $7,846.39
2020 5180,775.03 516,246.30 538,31 $0.00 50,00 $197,059.64 $8,018.51 $0.00 $0.00 $203,078.15
TOTAL 5188,486.89 $16,77%€6.41 $43.01 $0.00 50.00 $205, 306,31 57,6037 376,00 571,44 5213,056.92




Adjustment / Release Report

02-01-2021 to 02-28-2021

Year General Penalty Waste Additional Fees Principal Interest Advertising Cost Legal Cost Fire Amount Due County Net
2020 5368.12 50.00 50.00 50.00 5368.12 51921, 8¢ 30,090 50.00 $0.00 $560.08 $560.08

TOTAL 5368.12 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 8368.12 5191.9¢6 50.00 50.00 50.00 $560.08 5560.02




Collections Receipts Report
02-01-2021 to 02-28-2021

Total general tax $188,48¢6.89
Total fire tax $16,776.41
Total penalty 543,01
Total Waste Fees 50.00
Total Additicnal Fees 30.00
Total principal $205,308.31
Total interest 57,603.17
Total cost of advertising $7€.00
Total legal $71.44
Total check overpayments 519.46
Total Prepaid Payments $1,5956.00
Total Prepaid Applied 50.00
Total misc $9,326.07
Grand total receipts $214,632.38




District Payment Report

02-01-2021 to 02-28-2021

Year District Code District Name Amount
2011 005 GREEN MOUNTAIN FIRE DISTRICT $0.00
2012 005 GREEN MOUNTAIN FIRE DISTRICT $0.00
2013 005 GREEN MOUNTAIN FIRE DISTRICT $0.00
2014 006 JACKS CREEK FIRE DISTRICT $0.00
2015 006 JACKS CREEK FIRE DISTRICT $0.00
2016 006 JACKS CREEK FIRE DISTRICT $2.87
2017 006 JACKS CREEK FIRE DISTRICT $13.41
2018 006 JACKS CREEK FIRE DISTRICT $10.90
2018 010 PENSACOLA FIRE DISTRICT 520.88
2019 001 BURNSVILLE FIRE DISTRICT $217.09
2019 002 CANE RIVER FIRE DISTRICT $518.52
2019 005 GREEHN MOUNTAIN FIRE DISTRICT $5.35
2019 006 JACKS CREEK FIRE DISTRICT $43.71
2019 007 BRUSH CREEK FIRE DISTRICT 52.43
2019 008 CRABTREE FIRE DISTRICT $123.14
2019 010 PEMSACOLA FIRE DISTRICT $71.81
2020 001 BURNSVILLE FIRE DISTRICT $3,544.54
2020 002 CANE RIVER FIRE DISTRICT $576.20
2020 003 EGYPT FIRE DISTIRCT $516.11
2020 004 RAMSEYTOWN FIRE DISTRICT $371.21
2020 005 GREEN MOUNTAIN FIRE DISTRICT $331.10
2020 006 JACKS CREEK FIRE DISTRICT $1,208.18
2020 007 BRUSH CREEK FIRE DISTRICT $575.18
2020 008 CRABTREE FIRE DISTRICT $2,845.57
2020 00¢ SOUTH TOE FIRE DISTRICT $3,187.49
2020 010 PENSACOLA FIRE DISTRICT $629.31
2020 011 PRICES CREEK FIRE DISTRICT $2,461.41

TOTAL $16,776.41




Detailed District Payment Report

02-01.2021 to 02-28-2021

Year District Code District Name Taxpayer Name Address
TOTAL

Amount
5G.00




Outstanding Balances Report
As of 02-28-2021

Year Amount County District Interest Advertising Penaities Waste Additional Fees
2010 $14,019.28 $6,548.98 $662.10 $6,728.21 $80.0C 50.00 $0.00 56.00
2011 $22,142.11 $10,981.63 $51,138.14 59,5%12.49 $92.00 $17.895 $0.00 50.00
2012 $25,€41.49 $12,786.60 $1,485.00 $10,978.64 $112.00 $279.25 50.00 $0.00
2013 521,682 .¢62 512,004,117 51,131.07 $8,349.38 $138.00 $0.00 $0.00 50.00
2014 $24,813.10 $14,559.46 $1,321.87 $8,410.49 $148.00 $373.48 $0.00 $0.00
2015 $27,796.98 $1%,859.51 $1,671.19 $8,656.23 5196.00 37271.95 30,00 50.00
2016 $51,633.83 $34,898.40 $2,833.23 $13,519.52 $256.00 $322.638 $4.00 $0.00
2017 $70,138.98 549,222.56 $4,267.38 $15,615.10 $424.G6 5609.94 $0.00 $0.60
2018 $107,257.49 $51,097.00 $6,973.867 $517,584.17 $739.27 $862.68 $0.00 $C.00
2019 $251,001,38 5204,497.08 $17,654,95 $26,104.53 $1,728.00 $1,016.82 $0.00 50.00
2020 $1,008,509.33 5900, 965.82 579,085.48 527,643.87 50,00 $314.1¢6 50.00 50.00

Total $1,624,636.80 $1,344,421.21 $118,023.88 $153,502.863 $3,973.97 $4,518.81 54.00 50.00C



CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

This contract entered into Myih

by & between

Yaue. Gty . hereinafter called the Client. & Civil Design Concepls,

P.A.. Witnesseth that:

Whereas, the Client desires to engage Civil Design Concepts {sometimes referred to as “CDC") to provide consulting services; and.
Whereas, the Client finds that the atlached Scope of Services and terms of this agreement are acceptabie; and,
Whaereas, Civil Design Concepts desires to provided said services and agrees to do so for the compensation and upen the terms

and conditions as hereinafler set forth,
Now, therefore, the parties herelo do mutually agree as follows:

1. Scope of Services: Civil Design Concepts shall provide the services
attached hereto in the Exhibit A “Proposal For Services”, dated

AR to this Agreement, hereinafter called services.
Additional services will be inveiced in accordance with the aitached rate and
fee schedule.

1, Standard of Care: Civil Design Conceplts will perform its services using
thal degree of skill and diligence normally employed by professional
engineers or consultants performing the same services al the time these
services are rendered. CDC shalf have the right to rely on any and all
information furnished by Client without any requirement to verify same.

3. Authorization to Proceed: Execuion of this Consuling Services
Agreement will be considered authorization for Civil Design Concepts to
proceed unless otherwise provided for in this Agreement or as olherwise
modified by the attached project schedule.

4. Changes in Scope: The Client may request changes in the Scope of
Services provided in this Agreement. If such changes affect Civil Design

Concepls cost of or time required for performance of the services, an
equitable adiustment will be made through an amendment to this Agreement,
Any additional services resulling from a change in scope of services will be
pre-approved by the client,

8. Compensation: The Client shall pay the compensation to Civit Design
Concepis set forth in the Exhibil *A", Section V. “Cost For Services™, as
described in the proposal altached hereto. Unless otherwise provided in the
Cost For Services, Givil Design Concepts shall submit invoices to the Client
monthly (by the 75" day of the month} for work accomplished under this
agreement and the Client agrees to make payment to Civil Design Concepts
within thirty (30) days of teceipt of the invoices. Chent further agrees to pay
interest on all accounts invoiced and not paid or objected to for a valid cause
in wiiting within said ime period at a rate of 1-1/2 percent per month (18
percentl per annum). until paid, Chent agrees lo pay Civil Design Goncepls’
cost of collection of the amounts due and unpaid after sixly (60} days,
including but not limited to, count costs and attorney's fees. Civil Design
Concepls shall not be bound by any provision such as contained in 2
purchase order or wherein Civil Design Concepts waives any rights to a
mechanic’s lien or any provision conditioning Civit Design Concepts’ right to
receive payment for its work upon payment to the Client by any third party.
These general conditions are notice, where required, that Civil Design
Concepts shall file a lien whenever necessary to collect past due amounts.
The Client agrees that failure to make payment in full within thirty (30) days.
or raise any specific objeclion 1o the services rendered or charge therefore
shall constitute a waiver of any such objection or claim as to any issue Client
may have and the faiture to make payment or raise any objeclion as herein
required shall bar any claim against CDC in torl or contract. It is also
mutually agreed that should the Client fail o make prompt payments as
described herein, Civil Design Concepls reserves the right to immediately
stop all work under this agreement until all aceounts are brought current or
terminate this agreement, in the sole discrefion of CDC.

6. Personnel: Civil Design Concepts represents that it has, or will secure at
their own expense, all personnel required to perform the services under this
agreement and that such personnel will be fully qualified and adequatety
supervised to perform such services. It is mutually understood thal
should the scope of services require outside subcentracted services: Civil
Besign Concepts may employ those services at their discretion.

7. Opinions or Estimates of Cost: Any costs eslimales pravided by Civil

Design Concepts shall be considered opinions of probable costs. These
along with project economic evaluations provided by Civil Design Concepts
will be on a basis of experience and judgment, but, since Civil Design
Cancepts has no contral over market conditions or bidding procedures, Civil

Chard mitials L‘A

foin mrkalsi@__

Design Concepts cannotl warrant that bids, ultimate construction cost, or project
economics will not vary from these opinions. Based thereon, Client waives any
and all claims against CDC which arise out of any opinion of probable construction
cost provided.

8. Termination: This Agreement may be terminated for convenience by either the
Client or Civil Design Concepts with 15 days written natice or if either party fails
substantially to perform through no fault of the other and does not commence
carrection of such non perfermance within & days of written notice and diligently
complete the correction thereafter. On termination, Civil Design Concepts will be
paid for all authorized work performed up to the termination date plus reasonable
project closeout costs. ‘

9. Limitation of Liability. Civil Design Concepts liability for Glient's damages
will, in aggregate, not exceed $1,000,000 for the Scope of Services
referenced herein, This provision takes precedence over any conflicting
provision of this Agreement or any documents incorporated into it or
referenced by it. This limitation of liability will apply whether Civil Design
Concepts liability arises under breach of contract or warranty; tort,
including negligence; strict liability; statutory liability: or any other
cause of action, and shall include Civil Design Concepts’ directors,
officers, employees and subcontractors, Limits of liability may be
increased upen request by Client for additional fees paid.

16.  Assignability: This agreement shall not be assigned or otherwise
transferred by either Civil Design Concepls or the Client without the prior writien
consent of the other, Assignability of this conlract wilt not unreasenably be
withheld.

11, Severability: The provisions of this Consulting Services Agreement shall
be deemed severable, and the invalidity or enforceability of any provision shall
not affect the validity or enforceability of the other provisions herecf. If any
provision of this consulting services agreement is deemed unenforceable for any
reason whatsocever, such provision shall be appropriately limited, and given
effect to the extent that it may be enforceable.

12, Ownership of Documents: CDC shall retain all ownership and common
law properly rights in all documents, calculations, drawings, maps (logether
the “Docurments”). Upon full and final payment to CDC pursuant to this contract,
COC will grant a one time, nonexclusive ficense in the Documents for Client's
use on this Project! Client agrees that the deliverables are intended for tha
exclusive use and benefil of, and may be relied upon for this project only by the
Client and will not be used otherwise. In the event Chent fails to pay all sums
when due, CDC reserves the right to withdraw its Documents from any
governmental agency to which same have been submitted for the purpose
of cbtaining approvals or permits and Client acknowledges that it shalf have no
right to make any use of the Documents whalsoever unless paymenis are made
to CDC in accordance with this Agreement. Client agrees that CDC shall have
the right to obtain an injunction to restrain such use if at any time Client fails 1o
make payments to CDC.

3. Excusable Delay: if perfarmance of service is affected by causes beyond
Civil Design Concepts control, project schedule and compensation shall be
equitably adjusled.

14,  Indemnification: Client agrees lo indemnify, defend and hold Civil
Design Concepts, its agents, employees, officers, directors and subcontractors
harmless from any and all ¢laims, and costs brought against Civil Design
Concepts which arise in whole or in part out of the failure by the Client to
promptly and completely perform its obligations under this agreement, and as
assigned in the Exhibit A, or from the inaccuracy or incompleteness of information
supptied by the Client and reasonably relied upon by Civit Design Concepts in
performing its duties or for unauthorized use of the deliverables generated by
Civil Design Contcepls.

FageJof'2



15. Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the inlernal laws
of the Sitate of North Carolina.

16. Entire Agreement: This Agreement contains all of the agreements,
fepresentations and understandings of the parties herelo and supersedes
any previous undersiandings. cormmitments, proposals, or agreementls,
whather oral or written, and may only be modified or amended as herein
provided; and as mulually agreed.

17. Attachments to this document: Exhibit A, “Proposal For Services”
Date: Mapeh | 202

Client: _Yancey County -~

Client Authorized Signz

Print Name; Lynn Aus

Title: County Manager

Address: 10 Town Square Room 711, Burnsville NC 28714

Civil Design Concepts, P.A,

gL
Signature: \j S

Name: Jesse Gardner, P.E,

168 Patton Avenue 52 Walnut Street — Suite 8
Ashevilte, NC 28801 Waynesville, NC 28786

Page 2002



Concepts, PA

October 29, 2020

PROPOSAL FOR SERVICES — EXHIBIT A

SUBMITTED TO: Jamie McMahan
Yancey County
Planning and Economic Development Direetor

SUBMITTED FOR: Estimate for Design Services for Micaville Site
Yancey County, North Carolina Project # TBD

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES:

Thank you for allowing us to provide you this proposal with anticipated services and projected
fees for the “Micaville Site” project. The following is an anticipated Scope of Services detailing
services anticipated by Civil Design Concepts, P.A. and its consultants.

Information provided in this Scope of Services is based on our experience with past projects and
our understanding of this project based on the information we have been provided to date.

A. Preliminary Feasibility / Analysis:

1. Atiend project kick-off mecting with Owner, & Design Team.

2. Coordinate available information and determine needs for additional
information necessary to obtain approvals for the project.

3. Evaluate existing infrastructure mcluding water, sewer, storm and dry utility
analysis,

4. Identify any improvements that may be necessary to accommodate future
development.

5. Preliminary analysis of the property as it relates to roadways, building pads,
parking, and utilities.

6. Dcvelop Base Maps from GIS information provided by the owner.

7. Develop conceptual layout of existing and proposed road configurations,
building pads, rough grading, and conceptual storm drainage, water, and sewer
plans.

8. Develop quality take off and preliminary cost estimate for site work.

9. Attend meeting with client. Develop timeline and strategy for proceeding to the
next stage of construction documents.



Mr. Jamie McMahan
October 29, 2020
Page 2 of 6

B. Environmental Analvsis

I

Wetland/Stream Delineation

a. Complete a comprehensive delineation of Jjurisdictional wettands and Waters of

the United States within the referenced tract. This task will include the
identification and field demarcation of wetlands and streams. The areas on the
site that meet the wetland/Waters of the U.S. parameters will be flagged with
plastic surveyor’s tape. This task includes a brief letter report of findings and
permitting scenarios.

During field studies, wetland limits/stream origins will be located using a sub-
meter Trimble Geo XT GPS mapping grade unit. Several known points (i.e.,
property comers) will also be located to provide for accurate referencing. Upon
collection and subscquent differential correction.

GPS mapping grade data is typically sufficient for corps veriftcation and
permitting, however, should the client wish to convert the GPS wetland/stream
locations to a recordable format, services of a registered land surveyor will be
required.

2. Agency Coordination

a. Prepare a Jurisdictional Determination request for submittal to the US Army

Corps of Engineers, (USACE) and provide ongoing coordination in order to
acquire written verification of the jurisdictional limits on the subject
property. If a field review of the subject property is requested by the USACE,
then CEC will accompany then to the site to provide justification of any
delineated wetland or stream origins.

C. Geotechnical Exploration / Analvsis / Soil Borings & Phase 1 ESA

1.

Preliminary Geotechnical Exploration

a. Contacting the North Carolina One Call Center to locate underground utilities.

b. A sitc reconnaissance and establishment of boring locations by a geotechnical

professional, using existing site features and estimating distances.
Mobilization of a truck-mounted drill rig to the site.

Performance of 15 soil test boring in accordance with ASTM D 1586, The
majority borings will be extended to depths of 10 to 20 feet. One of the
borings will be extended to a depth of 20-80 feet in order to gather
information for seismic site classification.

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 5432, Asheville, NC 28813

£68 Patton Avenue Asheville, NC 28801 51 Walnut Street - Suite 9, Wavnesville, NC 28786
Phone 828-252-3388 Fax $28-252-5365 Phone: 828-452-4410 Fax: 828-456-5455



Mr. Jamie McMahan
October 29, 2020
Page 3 of 6

d.

e.

qc,

m.

1.

Measurements of groundwater depths (if encountered) will be obtained at the
completion of the borings.

Estimated subsurface profiles (boring logs) as necessary to illustrate
subsurface conditions including standard penetration resistance test data and

eround water levels.

Several laboratory samples wilt be collected in order to evaluate the suitability
of on-site s0il as fill material.

Observation and stratification of the boring soil samples by a geotechnical
professional.

Preparation of an engineering report that will include:
A summary of our understanding of the proposed construction.
A summary of the exploration and encountered subsurface conditions.

Site grading information. including anticipated subgrade suitability and
stabilization, groundwater control, and/or rock cxcavation.

Preliminary shallow foundation Support recommendations and design
parameters.

Preliminary grade slab support recommendations.

Recommendations for construction observation and testing.

2. Grading and Clearing

&,

The site is characterized by some woods and gentle slopes. BLE proposces to
retain the services of a grading and clearing company to prepare the work area
for the geotechnical exploration. All reasonable attempts will be made to keep
the amount of clearing to a minimum.

3. Phase I Environmental Site Assessment

a.

BLE will use ASTM Standard Practice E 1527-1 3, Standard Practice for
Environmental Site Assessments: Phase | Environmental Site Assessment
Process as a guideline. ASTM Practice E 152713 constitutes "all appropriate
inquiry (AAl) into the previous ownership and uses of a property consistent
with good commercial or customary practice” as defined at 42 US.C
§9601(35)(B). This practice also permits the user to satisty one of the
requirements to qualify for "landowner liability protections (LLPs)" under
CERCLA.

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 5432, Asheville, NC 28813

168 Patton Avenue Asheville, NC 28801 52 Walnut Street - Suite 9, Wavnesville, NC 28786
Phone §28-252-5388 Fax 828-252-5365 Phone: 828-452-4110 Fax: §28-456-5455



Mr. Jamic McMahan
Qctober 29, 2020
Page 4 of 6

b.

(e

The Phase 1 ESA will be conducted 10 provide an independent, professional opinion
regarding recognized environmental conditions (REC), as defined by ASTM, associated with
the subject property. The term REC is the presence or likely presence of any hazardous
substances or petroleum products in, on, or at a property: (1) due to any release to the
environment; (2} under conditions indicative of a release to the environment; or (3} under
conditions that pose a material threat of a future release to the environment. The proposed
Phase I ESA will generally follow ASTM E 1527-13 and will include:

I, Interview the subject property owner or a client-designated Key Site Manager,
Occupants and State/Local Government Officials, regarding current and
previous uses of the property, particularly activities involving hazardous
substances and petroleum products. Past owners, eperators and occupants will
also be interviewed to the extent they are identified and their information will
not likely be duplicative.

2. Investigate historical use of the subject property through reasonably
ascertainable Standard [Historical Sources, which may include aerial
photography, fire insurance maps, property tax files, land use maps, USGS
topographic maps, city directories, and/or building department records for
evidence of prior land use that could have led to recognized environmenial
conditions.

3. Review environmental records available from the client, property owner or site
contact including regulatory agency reports, permmits, registrations, and
consultants' reports for evidence of recognized environmental conditions and
activity and use limitations (AULs).

4. Review a commercially-available database summary of federal and state and
tribal regulatory agency records pertinent to the subject property and offsite
facilities located within ASTM specified search distances from the subject
property.

5. Conduct an onsite reconnaissance of the subject property for visual evidence of
recognized envirommental conditions; and,

6. Prepare a written report that documents the findings of the assessment, with
conclusions and recommendations, as warranted.

Activities performed under this scope of work will be conducted under the responsible
charge of an Environmental Professional as defined in §312.10 of 40 CFR 312,

User Responsibilities/Requested Information Specific tasks to be performed by the user of
the Phase 1 ESA arce described in Scction 6 User's Responsibilities, of ASTM Practice E
1527-13. One of these tasks includes the development of information to be provided to the
cnvironmental professional. As a convenience, we have summarized these requirements in
the attached questionnaire. This questionnaire should be completed and retumed to us at the
samie time this proposal is authorized. Incomplete or missing information could be
constdered a data gap and could result in a determination that 1s not complete.

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 5432, Asheville, NC 28813
168 Patton Avenue Asheville, NC 28801 32 Walnut Street - Suite 9, Wavnesville, NC 28786
Phone 828-252.5388 Fax §28-252-5365 Phone: 828-452-4410 Fax: 828-456-5455



Mr. Jamie McMahan
October 29, 2020
Page 5 ol 6

IL. CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES:

The Client shall provide Civil Design Concepts, P.A_, with base site information in AutoCAD
format, building plans, program descriptions, budget or other information as may be required to
complete the work, or shall agree to reimburse Civil Design Concepts, P.A. for the cost of
obtaining the information required. The Client shall hold harmless and indemnify Civil Design
Concepts, P.A. against injury loss or damage arising out of the negligent acts, errors or omissions
arising from information supplied by others,

Fuarther, the Client shall identify and designatc one individual to act on behalf of the Client for
reviews and approvals. The Client shall identify any special definitions or conditions reguired for
invoicing for services rendered.

IHI.  ADDITIONAL SERVICES

All additional work requested by the Owner will be billed on an hourly basis or a negotiated
lump sum fee. Extra work will include, but not be limited to:

Multiple phases of construction. (This proposal assumes single-phase construction.)
Design of off-site utility extensions necessary to serve the project other than described.
Change in scope of services as defined within this proposal,

Changes required due to contractor error,

Design modifications requested by Owner after submittals.

Design changes duc to error in basc survey information.

Flood study/ Permitting Services.

No structural designs included.

No geotechnical investigation or designs included.

Please note that this scope assumes that we will be provided adequate base information to
develop design documents and required footprint information, which inciudes but is not
limited to:

a. Topographic data in two-foot intervals provided by professional land surveyor.

b. Finalized footprints from the architect including accessible entrance, routes, etc.

¢. Other information determined to be necessary to conplete this project’s requirenients.

SO NR AW~

—_—

1. Fast track packaging of construction documents.
12. Water feature mechanical or structural engineering design; fees will be negotiated as

necessary.
13. Pool or spa mechanical or structural engineering design; fees will be negotiated as
necessary,

14, Construction documentation for exterior lighting. Concept design level drawings and
fixture selection are included, if applicable. Lighting shop drawings by installation
contractor to be required and will be reviewed by Landscape Architect.

[5. Retaining wall design on walls greater than 5’ (five feet) in height. A geotechnical engineer
sub-consultant may be necessary.

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 5432, Asheville, NC 28813
168 Patton Avenune Asheville, NC 28801 52 Walnut Street - Suite 9, Waynesville, NC 28786
Phone 828-252-5388 Fax 828-232-5365 Phone: 828-452-4410 Fax: 828-456-5455



Mr. Jamie McMahan
October 29, 2020
Page 6 of 6

IV.  SCHEDULE

Civil Design Concepts, P.A. will begin work upon aceeptance of this proposal, unless otherwise
specified, and will work to mect all reasonable schedules established by the Client,

V. COST FOR SERVICES

Fees for the above scope of services are estimated as {ollows:

A. Preliminary Feasibility/Analysis h) 9,700

B. Environmental Analysis: S 11,250
C. Geotechnical Analysis Phase 1: $ 22.250
TOTAL: ) 43,200

*Estimated fee based upon attached fee schedule. Actual costs at hourly rates of Civil
Design Concepts, P.A. personnel assigned to project as follows:

Pringipal Engineer S$140-hr
Senior Project Engineer S125he
Associate Project Engineer S100hr
Constrction Administralor 5100y
Senior Civil Engineer Technician S 93
Contract Administrator S 90hr
Civil Engineer Technician S 80hr
Construction Inspector S 60kr
Office Administrator S 40%hr

Any work in addition to that outlined in the Scope of Services listed above will be billed on an
hourly basis according to the rate schedule shown or a negotiated lump sum fee. Additional
Services will only be performed under written authorization from the client. These rates are valid
through December 31, 2020 at which time the client will be notificd in writing of any rate
changes.

Reimbursable expenses are not included in the cost of services. Reimbursable expenses shall
include the following: long distance telephone, postage, fax, and photographs, travel @
$0.60/mi., meals and other incidental expenses shall be a direct charge per receipts.

Printing and reproduction of plans and specifications will be billed at a 1.1 multiplier of cost.

Payment for services rendered shall be made monthly, due within ten days of the receipt of
mvoice, for all work completed through the last pay period in the preceding month or according
to a schedule provided by the Client. Any invoice outstanding for more than 30 days after
receipt will be subject to an interest charge of 1-1/2% per month,

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 5432, Asheville, NC 28813
168 Patton Avenue Asheville, NC 28801 31 Walnut Street - Suite 9, Waynesville, NC 28786
Phone 828-252-3388 Fax §28-252-5365 Phone: 828-452-4410 Fax: 828-456-5455



VI PROPOSAL DURATION

This proposal shall be valid for thirty (30) days. Upon acceptance, it shall become an agreement
between the Client and Civil Design Concepts, P.A.

VII ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Included are two (2) copies of our C onsulting Services Agreement and this Proposal For
Services. If the terms of the Agreement and the Proposal are acceptable, please execute both
documents and return one (1} original copy of each to our office.

When executed this Agreement may be terminated for convenience within 15 days written notice
by Civil Design Concepts, P.A. or Yanccy County , or if either party fails substantially
to perform through no fault of the other and does not cominence correction of such
nonperformance within 5 days of writien notice and diligently complete the correction thereafter.
In the event of termination, Civil Design Concepts, P.A. shall be paid for all authorized services
performed and reimbursable expenses incurred to the date of notification. Any expenses
incurred by Civil Design Concepts, PA. due to termination of project by Client shall be paid by
Client. Respectfully submitted March 12021

Mﬂ March 12021

Jessc Gardner, P.E. (Date)
Civil Design Concepts, P.A.

3/1/21
Lyhn Austin (Date)

Yancey County

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 5432, Asheville, NC 28813
168 Patton Avenue Asheville, NC 28801 32 Walnut Street - Suite 9, Waynesville, NC 28786
Phone 828-252-5388 Fax 828-252-5365 Phone: 828-432-4410 Fax; §28-156-5455



WAMY CARES Act

Description

| The presenters have provided the following information for the Board’s review in advance of the meeting. J
Item Presenter
| Starli McDowell & April Beck |

Board Action Requested

| ]




WAMY Community Action received Cares Act Funding in late July 2020 and we have worked to assist
residents with mortgage and rent payments, utilities, heating fuel and water bills in all the four counties
we serve. The need in our community has been immense, especially through the holidays. There are
families with children that have been impacted by COVID-19 either by losing their jobs or having their
hours cut. The service sector has been hit the hardest with restaurant workers and hospitality jobs
suffering the most with some ineligible for unemployment and many just losing income due to fewer
hours. | am a paycheck-to-paycheck worker as are most of the residents that live and work in the tri-
county area. If | missed two paychecks because of a Covid-19 exposure or illness | would have a very
hard time recovering from that loss of income.

The rent moratorium that protects the tenant against eviction does not wipe away that expense. They
continue to owe that back rent and when the moratorium is lifted, and it will be, the tenants will owe
hundreds of dollars in unpaid rent and be facing eviction. What | have also seen that has been very
disturbing is the flip side of the rent crisis, landlords not getting paid. Most rental properties are owned
by families that depend on the rental income as part of their family budget. These families own the
property and while their tenants are not paying, they still need to maintain the property and wind up
having to pay the water bills to prevent cut offs which to reconnect would fall back on the landlords. |
have included several letters of support from landlords that explain their financial distress during this
crisis and so the landlords need has also been served by this Covid-19 relief funding.

WAMY’s approach has always been to help people and families with a hand up not a handout. Qur
mission is “Partnering with families and communities to provide the disadvantaged the support and
tools they need to become self-sufficient.” WAMY’s philosophy th rough this crisis has been to help with
payments and this does not mean offering a small amount toward a rent payment. If they do not have
the rest of the payment that really does very little to lift them out of their situation. So WAMY has been
making the rent or mortgage payment and in special situations we can help twice. This we believe helps
the client climb out of a hole enabling them to use their resources to get back on their feet. At the same
time helping the landlords and their families survive this crisis. One payment helps two families.

We have also been working with the local electric companies who have had to make gut wrenching
decisions to cut off electric services for nonpayment. They have no choice; it is their job, and their
services are not free. These electric and fuel service businesses have employees and overhead expenses
that must be met. WAMY has been making these payments helping our clients and the businesses
serving our clients. We are all in this together and when this crisis is over, we believe cur counties will
be in much better shape as a result of the Cares Act Funding as well as the AMY Wellness Foundation
and Duke Energy Covid-19 Relief Funding.



WAMY Cares Program July 2020 to February 2021

Neighbors Feeding Neighbors - # Unduplicated individuals who benefited receiving food
boxes from July-December 2020 in partnership with Neighbors Feeding Neighbors
Avery - 25

Mitchell - 167

Yancey - 36 individuals

WAMY Thanksgiving Meals - # of individuals who benefited from WAMY Thanksgiving
Meal Distribution

Avery - 199

Mitchell - 23

Yancey -17

WAMY - Number of Children who received educational supplements delivered to their
homes after being sent home from school due to COVID-19

Avery - 261

***note that some of these may have also received Thanksgiving meals so there may be
some duplicates™**

4-H Avery - # of children who received full scholarships for 4-H Summer WOW camp
helping parents maintain employment through affordable and safe childcare
Avery — 18

Toe Valley Winter Soup Ministry prepared and delivered from Pine Grove Methodist
Church-
61 households and 128 shut in individuals served weekly

Individual households that received Cares Act assistance- 71

Watauga County- 30 households

Avery County- 17 households

Mitchell County- 7 households

Yancey County- 17 households

Spending for all four counties from July 2020 to February 2021- $66,074.00

AMY Weliness Foundation Covid Relief-
Avery County- 11 households

Mitchell County- 9 households

Yancey County- 13 househoids

Total spent $27,980

Duke Energy Covid Relief
Mitchell County- 5 households
Avery County- 3 households
Total spent $1806.56



WHO WE ARE

The Community
Housing Coalition is
a collaboration
among agencies,
church, civic, and
volunteer
organizations,
combining ideas
and resources in
order to improve the
quality of housing
for low-income
populations and
bridge gaps in social
service needs.

; /
WHAT WEDQ/ /
The AM.Y. Community Housing
Coalition works to provide I;ZW !
income individuals in Avery, Mj.t%h
. and Yancey counties with the/ho
: repairs they need to improve the
quality of their housing and qualit
of life,

HOW WE DO IT

Applications are accepted and
reviewed by our Community
Housing Coordinator and then
presented to the entire coalition
for consideration. This allows
organizations with different
services come together to provide
streamlined services for each
client. :

For example, a low-income older
adult needs a ramp built, some
plumbing work done, and a new.
window or two. While this may be
too much for one organization or
group to handle on its own, the
coalition can split the projects
among multiple parthers so that
the client receives all the services
7 they need and no one organizatio

has to face the entire cost or scopd
7 Ak e e S e

AMY. Community
Housing Coalition

ol

(828) 264-2421
april@wamycommunityaction.org

496A Balsam Ave
Spruce Pine, NC 28777

i

\\

|

| /




HOW YOU CAN HELPI

Become a Coalition
Partner!

We are always looking for new
community partners to join the
Coalition! If you are interested in
joining the Coalition, contact April
Beck.

Volunteerl!

We need volunteers to help
complete many of our projects! If
you or a group you know is
interested in volunteering, contact
April Beck.

Donatel

We need your financial supportin
order to make home repairs
possible! Donate through WAMY
Community Action - just let them
know it's for the Coalition!

You can donate by sending a check
payable to WAMY to 225 Birch St,,
Suite 2, Boone, NC 28607

or

Donate on their website .

www.wamycommunityaction.org/d
nnate-]

Our Pjrtners

o A MY PE

W

Mibehadi. Yan ey

e fr'ﬁ%:?zﬁ’% T ﬂ%"i‘tﬁi «-

M’m # "’?‘?‘ "’"Hj"’ A
LM G l‘_r]':' VLTINS P LE, ¢ o NEL P JE LS HWRH‘M

'\Mz HEALTHY FAMILIES

e
[

m\.e conciliation’ |
FEEDING AVERY '8
o FAMILIES
K| Hospice and Home Care R
i Of The BIWP Rlﬂgﬂ AFPALACHILAN KEGIDN,
S [ Lospice Palliadive Care CAR Flesewsresme Sesvea

Avery, Mitchell,
and Yancey County Governments

WEBSITE:
WWww.wamycommunityactlon.org/
amvhousinacoallelones



Toe River Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan

Description

Presented for consideration is the Toe River Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan. The updated plan has been —‘
approved by FEMA. The plan being considered can be found at the following link.
. https://espassociates-mv.sharepoint.com/:b:/p/nsIaughter/ESx4unixQZOprtXfo9feOBw7mmEODwJOG9th—H|'7p-

g?e=amlZHs
_A copy of the presentation and Resolution adopting the updated plan follow. |

Item Presenter _
Deff Howell & Nathan Slaughter j

Board Action Requested
' Adopt the Resolution




Toe River i?egiohaid

Mitigation Plan




WHAT IS MITIGATION?

“mit-i-gate”
1: to cause to become less harsh or hostile.
2: to make less severe or painful.

Hazard Mitigation

Any sustained action taken to reduce or
eliminate the long-term risk to human life

and property from hazards.




DISASTER MITIGATION ACT OF 2000

« Revitalized Federal Planning
Requirements
— State and Local Hazard Mitigation Plans

» Federal Grant Funding Eligibility
— Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP)
— Pre-Disaster Mitigation Program (PDM)
— Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA) m— Bk
« DMA 2000 is intended to facilitate & rEMa
cooperation between state and local
authorities on risk reduction measures and
expedite funding allocation

Local Multi-Hazard
Mitigation Planning
Guidance




PARTICIPATING JURISDICTIONS




PROJECT TASKS

1. Planning Process Q
2. Risk Assessment W e
3. Capability Assessment

s p -
), (Capability

)\ Assessment
R

HAZARD

Fln "

4. Mitigation Strategy b . e g
5. Plan Maintenance ‘121‘3:::;3"
6. Documentation n;:;:;i{:gﬁe ':::,, 6 e

(. }Docm ntation Preparation



HAZARD RISK

Severe Winter Weather
Tornadoes/ Thunderstorm
Cyber
Flood
Geological Hazards (Landslide)
Drought
Earthquake
Infectious Disease

Hazardous Material Incident
Wildfire

Excessive Heat
Terrorism
Hurricane and Coastal Hazards
LOW RISK

Dam and Levee Failure

Radiological Emergency

Electromagnetic Pulse




THINK OF MITIGATION IN THIS WAY...

1) We want to mitigate hazard
impacts on the existing
development in our communities

— Houses, businesses, infrastructure,
critical facilities, etc.

2) We want to ensure that future
development is conducted in a way
that doesn’t increase our
vulnerability

— Best done by having good plans,
policies and procedures in place




HAZARD MITIGATION TECHNIQUES

- Prevention
- Property Protection

- Natural Resource
Protection

- Structural Projects
' Emergency Services

- Public Education and
Awareness

Toe River Floodplains
W%E -‘
7 ,z;,

S Mitchell County: Avery County

MEDowell County, Qv

IFeet
42,60 000 [

Morganion

Legend

1.0 percent annual flood area
0.2 percent annual flood area,

Flood Hazard Areas in the Toe River Region
Source: Federal Emergency Management Agency




MITIGATION TECHNIQUES

Provantion Proper.ty Natural Re§ource Structural Projects Emerg!ency Public Education/

Protection Protection Services Awareness
'lanning and zoning | Acquisition Floodplain Reservoirs Warning systems Outreach projects
wilding codes Relocation prataction Dams, levees, dikes | Emergency Speaker series/
N Space Building elevation Watershed Floodwalls response equipment | demonstration

. management , events
reservation Critical facilitie Slormivater Shelter Operations
: : s Jathlies Riparian buffers bl ; . Hazard map
loodplain protection diversions Evacuation planning infarration
agulations g Forest management . . and management
Retrofitting Detention/ retention
: , ) Real estate
'tormwater Erosion and basins Emergency ;
Safe rooms ; - disclosure

1anagement B sh,atter sediment control e — response training
agulati : ’ i . ' ' '
gulations resistant glass Wetland modification and exercises Library materials
rainage system —— preservation and T — Sandbagging for School children
1aintenance Hataies restoration Sae flood protection educational
-apital Habitat preservation Temporary shutters programs
nprovements Hazard expositions
rogramming

,etbacks




MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

ead M Sehedule |
— ] Hazard Agency/ Potential
Action # Addressed Department | | £ ding
Description Priority Sources Status

Develop a policy to minimize No policy has been
public services to proposed new developed as of 2014, This
P-2 structures that will be located in Flood Medium City Planning Local 2019 is to be completed in 2019

100-year floodplain areas. pending funding, staff
resources and political will,




PUBLIC SURVEY

° H o) Ste d an on | I ne surv ey fo r th e Toe River Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan - Public Survey (*} surveyplanet
plan — 162 responses

We need your help!

Avery, McDowell, Mitchell, and Yancey Counties and the municipalities within
the counties are working together to become less vulnerable to natural
disasters, and your participation in the process is important to us!

The counties, along with local jurisdictions and other partners, are working to
update the multi-jurisdictional Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan. This plan
identifies and assesses our community's natural hazard risks and identifies
strategies that determine how to best minimize or manage those risks.

This survey is an opportunity for you to share your opinions and participate in
the mitigation pfanning process. The information you provide will help us better
understand your hazard concerns and can lead to mitigation activities that
should help lessen the impacts of future hazard events.

If you have any questions regarding this survey or would like to learn about
more ways you can participate in the development in the Toe River Regional
Hazard Mitigation Plan, please contact Jamie DeRose from ESP Associates,

Inc. You may reach Jamie DeRose at jderose@espassociates.com.



NEXT STEPS

* Plans will be presented to
local governing body
Councils and Boards
between now and Plan
Expiration

* Current Plan Expires
April 10, 2021




-Toe River Regional
Hazard Mitigation Pla




RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE
2021 UPDATE OF THE TOE RIVER
REGIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN

WHEREAS, YANCEY COUNTY is vulnerable to an array of hazards that can cause loss of life
and damages to public and private property; and

WHEREAS, YANCEY COUNTY desires to seek ways to mitigate situations that may aggravate
such circumstances; and

WHEREAS, the development and implementation of a hazard mitigation plan can result in
actions that reduce the long-term risk to life and property from natural hazards; and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the YANCEY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS to
protect its citizens and property from the effects of hazards by preparing and maintaining a local
hazard mitigation plan; and

WHEREAS, it is also the intent of the YANCEY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS to
fulfill its obligation under North Carolina General Statutes, Chapter 166A: North Carolina
Emergency Management Act and Section 322: Mitigation Planning, of the Robert T. Stafford
Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act to remain eligible to receive state and federal
assistance in the event of a declared disaster affecting YANCEY COUNTY:; and

WHEREAS, YANCEY COUNTY, in coordination with Avery, McDowell, and Mitchell
Counties and the participating municipalities within those Counties has prepared a multi-
Jurisdictional hazard mitigation plan with input from the appropriate local and state officials;

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Division of Emergency Management and the Federal Emergency
Management Agency have reviewed the Toe River Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan for
legislative compliance and have approved the plan pending the completion of local adoption
procedures;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS of
YANCEY COUNTY hereby:

1. Adopts the Toe River Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan; and

2. Agrees to take such other official action as may be reasonably necessary to carry out
the proposed actions of the Plan.

Adopted on MARCH 8, 2021.

JEFF WHITSON, Chair

YANCEY COUNTY

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
ATTEST:

(seal)

Sonya Morgan, Clerk to the Board



County Manager’s Report

Description

The County Manager will be presenting the following items in her report:

a. Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between Yancey County and North Carolina Agricultural and
Technical State University for Cooperative Extension Employee for consideration. This is a cost
sharing agreement for the cooperative extension employee’s salary.

b. Economic Development Incentive Agreement — Little Leaf NC,LLC

¢. Projects Updates

Item Presenter

| County Manager Austin

Board Action Requested




C. A&T | COOPERATIVE
ﬂTSJNIVERSITY EXTENSION

www.ag.ncat.edu/extension

February 5, 2021

Dear Mrs. Austin,

Last year, Cooperative Extension at North Carolina A&T State University reached out and asked for
Yancey County’s support for our Campaign for Sustainable County Partnerships. The campaign is a
multiyear effort to strengthen and deepen our relationships with county partners by sharing the cost of
local Extension professional positions. You responded to our request, and we thank Yancey County
sincerely for support and commitment to Extension education and outreach.

The Campaign for Sustainable County Partnerships is a three-year effort to create fair and equitable cost
share arrangements across all counties in North Carolina so we are better able to meet local staffing needs
and address local issues. In year one of the program, our cost share arrangement with Yancey County is
50.5/49.5 with county government contributing 50.5 percent of the support needed to sustain local
Extension Agriculture and Natural Resources (ANR) Technician position. The attached Memorandum of

Agreement (MOA) puts in place the 50.5/49.5 cost share arrangement. Please review the MOA, sign it,
and return it at your earliest convenience.

Ultimately, our campaign seeks to raise cost sharing for local positions to a level of 50/50 between our
county partners and Extension at A&T. We believe that Extension can be most effective in addressing
local needs when we share the responsibility for local staff at this level. That means we are providing you
with a new MOA, which reflects the 50.5/49.5 cost share arrangement with your county. The chart below
shows the position that will be supported through our partnership.

Once again, thank you for your support of Cooperative Extension and your belief in our mission, By
working together and sharing costs, we can translate the research and knowledge of N.C. A&T into
programs that build healthy, happy, and productive farmers, individuals, youth, families, and
communities.

With Aggie Pride,

Lorritte [V Lanah

Lonnette Marsh
Regional Extension Director, West

cc. David Davis, 'County Extension Director

North Carclina A&T State University and North Carolina State University commit themselves to positive action to secure equal opportunity regardless
of race, color, creed, national erigin, religion, sex, age, veteran status or disability. In addition, the two Universities welcome all persons without regard to
sexual orientation. North Carolina A&T State University, North Carolina State University, U.S. Department of Agriculture, and local governments cooperating.

Cooperative Extension at Coltrane Hall PO, Box 21928 Phone 336-334-7956
North Caroling Agricuitural and 1601 East Market Street Greensboro, NC 27420 Fax 336-256-0810
Technical State University " Greensboro, NC 2741



N.C. T | COOPERATIVE
STATEIN&RSSETY EXTENSION

www.ag.ncat.edu/extension

Phased Cost Share Plan

Agriculture and Natural Resources
{ANR) Technician
Previous County 28.24%
Funding
Cost Share Year 1: 50.5%
2620-2021 :
Increase

North Carolina A&T State University and North Carolina State University commit themselves to positive action to secure equal opportunity regardless
_of race, color, creed, nattonal origin, religion, sex, age, veteran status or disability. In addition, the two Universities welcome all persons without regard to
sexual orientation. North Carolina A&T State University, North Carolina State University, U.5. Department of Agriculture, and local governments canperating.

Cooperative Extension at Coltrane Hall P.O. Box 21928 Phone 336-334-7956
North Carglina Agricultural and 1601 East Market Street Greensboro, NC 27420 Fax 336-256-0810
Technical State University Greensboro, NC 27411



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
Between the
North Carolina Cooperative Extension Program/North Carolina Agricultural and Technical State University
And
Yancey County

The Memorandum of Agreement is to provide for the establishment of a procedure at North
Carolina Agricultural and Technical State University to be of service to Yancey County in a
payroll program that places Adam McCurry who is employed with the North Carolina
Cooperative Extension Program (gither jointly or entirely paid by said county) under one payroll
system. The State Auditor and Auditors of the agencies shall have access to persons and records
as a result of all contracts or grants entered into by State agencies or political subdivisions in
accordance with General Statute §147-64.7 and Session Law 2010-194, Section 21 (i.e., the State
Auditors and internal auditors may audit the records of the contractor during the term of the
contract to verify accounts and data affecting fees or performance). Parties shall abide by the
requirements of 41 CFR §§ 60-1.4(a), 60-300.5(a) and 60-741.5(a). These regulations prohibit
discrimination against qualified individuals based on their status as protected veterans or
individuals with disabilities, and prohibit discrimination against all individuals based on their
race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Moreover, these regulations require that covered
prime contractors and subcontractors take affirmative action to employ and advance in
employment individuals without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, protected
veteran status or disability. Yancey County, hereinafier designated as said county, and the
North Carolina Cooperative Extension Program/North Carolina Agricultural and Technical State
University, hereinafter designated NCA&TSU, shall adhere to the following provisions:

1. Purpose of Procedure — The purpose of the procedure is to provide a mechanism whereby
funds can be transferred from Yancey County to NCA&TSU for use in paying the salary
and benefits to Cooperative Extension employees of said county and NCA&TSU in a
single monthly paycheck.

2. Procedure for Providing Funds to the Account — NCA&TSU’s Contracts and Grants
Office will bill said county for their portion of the gross amount of the monthly payroll
and proportionate benefits related to the county employee. Upon receipt of the invoice,
said county will reimburse the specified amount to NCA&TSU. In lieu of receiving
paper checks, said county may complete and retum a State Treasurer's Electronic
Payment System (STEPS) form with the Memorandum of Agreement to establish an
¢lectronic reimbursement process.

3. Administration of the Funds — The funds will be maintained in accordance with
NCA&TSU accounting policies and procedures.

4. Emplovee Benefits — Affected employees will participate in the North Carolina
Retirement System and accompanying North Carolina Disability Income Plan. They also
will be eligible for NCA&TSU employee benefits for which they are entitled. Affected
employees will follow NCA&TSU’s personnel policies and procedures. Leave
maintenance will be administered entirely by the NCA&TSU. Said county will be
responsible for providing their proportional share of benefits.



a. County may indicate below their desire to provide monies to Cooperative
Extension employees for payment of an employer matching benefit for the NC
401(k) or other tax deferred programs. These monies will be paid in a lump
sum on an annual basis and will not be included in the monthly base salary.
Official notification in writing from said County of the lump sum dollar
amount to be paid to each employee will be processed for payment and billed
to the County for reimbursement to NCA&TSU.

Yes [ | No[]

b. County may indicate below if they desire to “lock-in” their proportional salary
funding percentage which will apply throughout the course of this
Memorandum of Agreement. Indicating “yes” will provide future salary
compensation for Cooperative Extension employees as approved by the
Legislature and implemented by the Office of the President, North Carolina
University System. These compensation components include, but are not
limited to: cost of living adjustments (COLA), merit adjustments, bonuses (in
any form conveyed), and promotions and/or reclassification adjustments.

Lock~In: Yes [ ] No[ ]
Budget and Support — Current Proportional Salary Funding Agreement
Yancey County Percentage: 50.5
Notth Carolina A&T State University Percentage: 49.5
Signatures of the persons below authorize the execution of the Memorandum of

Agreement, commencing on July 1, 2020 and continuing year-to-year. This Agreement
may be terminated at any time by providing no less than sixty (60) days written notice.

Signed:

Yancey County Manager Date
Clerk to Board Date
Administrator, North Carolina Cooperative Extension Date

Program, North Carolina A&T State University

Vice-Chancellor for Business & Finance Date
North Carolina A&T State University



NORTH CAROLINA
YANCEY COUNTY
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this the _ day of February, 2021 by and
between the County of Yancey, a body politic, organized and existing under the laws of and a
political subdivision of the State of North Carolina (hereinafter “County”) and Little Leaf NC,
LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company, (hereinafter “Company”); with all parties being
collectively referred to as “the parties™; thus

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Company desires to develop an innovative lettuce production facility
located in Yancey County, North Carolina, (hereinafter “Project”) which project is projected to
involve the expenditure of approximately NINETY ONE MILLION, NINETY TWO
THOUSAND, SIX HUNDRED, FIFTY AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($91,092,650.00) over a
period of four (4) years and result in the creation of 100 qualified jobs within five (5) years; and

WHEREAS, the County presently has an Option to purchase a certain tract of land more
particularly described in a deed from Bennett Family Property, LLC a NC Limited Liability

Company, to Brittney Long recorded at Yancey County Deed Book 805 page 740, the same
being incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full herein, together with all
improvements currently located thereon and all rights, privileges and appurtenances belonging
thereto (hereinafter “Option Property™); and

WHEREAS, the Company has identified a portion of the option property that is 42 acres,

more or less, as shown on that sketch of property attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (hereinafter

R&S 2604300_1



“Property”) which said parcel of land is deemed the Option Property to be well suited for the
Project, the Company has prepared preliminary plans for the project and has approached the
County about locating the project on the Option Property; and

WHEREAS, the Company has indicated that assistance in the form of a rough graded
site on the Property and recognition of tax revenue as consideration for the Property and other
incentives as allowed under North Carolina law would induce the Company to locate the Project
on the Property; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 158 of the North Carolina General Statutes, the County
has agreed after holding a public hearing on 30 November 2020, following Notice as required by
law, to provide certain incentives to the Company as more particularly described in this
Agreement as an inducement to the Company to proceed with the Project and to facilitate the
investment and creation of jobs in connection with the Project; and

WHEREAS, the County has determined, based on data projections provided by the
North Carolina Department of Commerce and other reliable sources, that the Company’s capital
investment on the Property and the operation of the Project will generate substantial ad valorem
tax revenues for the County and will result in the creation of a substantial number of jobs in the
County that will pay at or above the median average wage in the County and these benefits
constitute a material part of the financial basis for the County entering into this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Company acknowledges that the incentives provided herein was one of
the key factors in the Company’s decision to proceed with the Project and to make the
investment and enter into this Agreement and that the Company would not have agreed to
develop and operate the Project in the County without the valuable incentives provided by the

County.

R&S 2604300 _1



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set forth

herein, together with other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which are hereby

acknowledged, the County and the Company, together with their heirs and assigns, do hereby

agree as follows:

D

R&S 2604300 _1

Defined Terms:

a} “Project” means the innovative production facility constructed on the
property consisting of numerous environmentally friendly greenhouses;

b) “Property” means that tract of land containing 42 acres, more or less, as
shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference
with the understanding that said property is to be surveyed and the survey
description of said property to be used in the description in the Deed of
Conveyance of the property from the County to the Company;

c¢) “Contract Date” means the date on which this Agreement is fully executed
by all parties;

d) “Commencement Date” means the date on which the Company records
the Deed to the Property;

¢) “Option Agreement” means the Option Agreement wherein the County
has entered into an Agreement with Brittney Long to purchase the Option
Property;

f) “Development Plan” means the Company’s plan of development for the
Property is as set forth on Exhibit “B” attached hereto;

g) “Qualified Job” means a permanent job paying at or above the median

average annual wage for Yancey County as determined by the North Carolina



Department of Commerce for the most recent period for which data is
available;

J) “Force Majeure” means a cause or event not reasonably in control of
Yancey County or the Company including, but not limited to, (i) acts of God,
(i1) strikes, lockouts or other construction-related disturbances, (iii) acts of
public enemies, (iv) orders or restraints of any kind of the government of the
United States, the State of North Carolina or any department, agency, official
or political subdivision thereof, or any civil, judicial or military authority
issued without fault on the part of Yancey County, (v) insurrections, (vi) riots,
(vii) landslides, (viii) earthquakes, (ix) fires, (x) storms, (xi) droughts, (xii)
floods, (xii) explosions, or (xiv) breakages or accident to machinery or utility

lines.

II. Transfer of Property and Conditions of Closine:

R&S 2604300 1

a) Property Transfer: On or before the Commencement Date specified herein

below, County shall convey the Property to the Company pursuant to NCGS
158-7.1 (d), subject to the terms and conditions provided for in this

Agreement. Said conveyance shall be by Special Warranty Deed.

b) Exercise of Option: As a condition to County’s obligation to convey the
Property, County shall have taken all steps necessary to acquire the Property
from Brittney Long under the terms and provisions of the above-referenced
Option Agreement including, but not limited to, acquisition of the Option
Property, completion of all grading and excavation work as set forth in the

Option Agreement and all financing required for the acquisition of the



R&S 2604300_1

d)

Property. The County shall have through and until 1 April 2022 to satisfy the
conditions set forth herein, acquire the property and convey the same to the
Company. County shall not without its consent be required to deliver the
Deed to the property before said date.

¢) Title and Option Requirement Investigation: The Company shall have no

obligation to accept title to the Property unless and until the Company has
completed its due diligence investigation. The Company’s due diligence
investigation may include without limitation (i) all title survey, geo technical,
and environmental matters related thereto (ii) the County’s compliance with
all private restrictions, zoning ordinances, or government regulations relative
to the property, and (iii) the rough grading specifications and drawings for the
development of the property have been prepared and developed by Civil
Design Concepts, PA consistent with the design of the Company. The
Company shall have through and until 13 January 2021 to complete its due
diligence set forth herein above.

If the Company determines that the conditions set forth in herein above
have not been satisfied, Company shall notify County within ten (10) days and

the County shall have reasonable opportunity to satisfy said conditions. If the
conditions cannot be satisfied within ninety (90) days of Notice, the parties

may agree upon a reasonable extension of said period.

Closing & Recording: Upon the completion of due diligence, the Company
shall give notice to the county to proceed with the grading of the property

consistent with the above set forth specifications and the County shall have



R&S 2604300_1

through and until 1 April 2022 to complete the rough grading. Upon
completion of the grading the County agrees to deliver the Special Warranty
deed to the property within fourteen (14) business days. The Company shall
record the Deed in the Yancey County Registry on or before the 5™ business
day following closing. The date of the recording shall be the commencement

date defined above.

e) Company’s obligations:

1) Improvements to Property: The Company shall construct or cause to be
constructed certain improvements and facilities on the property substantially as
set forth in the development plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. The facility
and improvements shall be constructed in phases and within the times set forth
in the Development Plan. Said improvements and facilities are estimated to
have a taxable value of $91,092,650.00. The deadline for completion of the
improvements set forth in the Development Plan is four (4) years from the
commencement date;

2) Job creation: The Company will create a minimum of 100 new permanent

jobs (herein “qualified jobs”) within Yancey County and maintain those jobs
on the schedule as set forth in the table below. The Company shall pay a
median average hourly wage for the qualified jobs at the Project that is above
the then current median average hourly wage paid in Yancey County. The
term “median average hourly wage” is defined as the median average hourly
wage for all insured industries in the County as determined the Employment

Security Commission (currently determined by the North Carolina Department



R&S 2604300_1

of Commerce) for the most recent period for which the data is available. The
parties acknowledge that the median average weekly wage in Yancey County
is currently $702.00 with an annual average wage of $36,715.00. The
Company commits to the creation of the aforementioned jobs in accordance
with the schedule set forth in Exhibit “C” attached hereto and incorporated
herein as if set forth in full.

1) Tax generation:

The Company is expected to generate property tax revenue from the
Project of $5,465,559 over its first ten (10) years of operation following
the Commencement Date as set forth in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and
incorporated herein as if set forth in full.

It is recognized that these are revenue projections based on current
tax rates and tax structure. These projected revenues will be taken into
account by the County in determining the amount of consideration that it
receives for the conveyance of the Property to the Company as allowed by
NCGS 158-7.1(d)2), together with the credit for Job Creation set forth on
Exhibit “C”,

2) Commencement of Operation & Term of Oblications:

Company shall commence full operation of the Project within five (5)
years of Commencement Date and shall maintain the Obligations set forth
hereinabove through and until ten (10) years from the Commencement
Date.

3) Other:



R&S 2604300_1

a) Permits: The Company shall obtain and maintain all permits and
approvals required by federal, state and local law for the construction
and operation of the proposed Improvements and the Project.

b) Quarterly Reports: The Company shall provide the County with

copies of all monthly and/or quarterly tax and wage statements, at the
time of filing, for the Company. Said statements and other documents
may be necessary to allow the County to determine compliance with
the Jobs Creation and Tax Revenue benchmarks.

¢) Fair Market Value of the Property: For the purposes of the sale or

conveyance contemplated herein, it is acknowledged and agreed by
the partics that the fair market value of the Property, if sold, is
$5,000,000.00.
4. Extensions:

For good cause, including Force Majeure, the time for

performance of any obligation set forth herein may be extended by the

party to whom the performance is due; provided that the aggregate of

extensions may not cause the time for completion of the Improvements to

extend beyond five (5) years from the Commencement Date.



R&S 2604300_1

II. COUNTY’S REMEDIES FOR COMPANY’S FAILURE TO MEET

OBLIGATIONS:

The County and the Company acknowledge that the creation of Qualified
Jobs and additional qualified Capital Investment, with corresponding
projected increases in economic activity and tax revenue to the County,
are of the essence of this Agreement and form the legal basis for the
County’s participation in it. Pursuant to NCGS 158-7.1(h), the County’s
remedies for failure by the Company to meet its obligations as set out
herein are:

A. Failure to Complete Construction and Commence Operations: If the

Company fails to construct and operate the contemplated phases of
Improvements within the times set out in this Agreement, then the
County may elect to terminate this Agreement under the provisions of
paragraph F below.

B. Failure to Create Jobs: If the Company does not reach the number of

Qualified Jobs as outlined in paragraph II (e) (2) hereof, as shown on
the copy of its Quarterly Hour and Wage Statement for the period
ending within the times set out in this Agreement, then the County
may elect to terminate this Agreement under the provisions of
paragraph F below.

C. Failure to Maintain Jobs: For any year in which the Company fails to

retain the jobs actually created in prior years under this Agreement,

then the County may elect to terminate this Agreement under the



R&S 2604300 _1

provisions of paragraph F below.

. Failure to Maintain Sales and Property Tax Revenue: Notwithstanding

the initial capital investment, if the Company fails to maintain a total
level of property tax revenue within Yancey County at the levels and
for the periods of time set forth in paragraph II (e) (3), then the County
may elect to terminate this Agreement under the provisions of
paragraph F below. The parties hereto specifically covenant and agree
that the Company will not make application for nor will the company
be eligible for any type, kind or form of tax relief from the assessment
of Yancey County ad valorem taxes including, without limitation,

relief under N.C. Gen. Stat. 105-277.4.

. Failure to pay taxes: Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement

to the contrary, if the Company shall fail to pay its ad valorem taxes
when due, then at the option of the County, and in addition to other
remedies provided by law, this Agreement may be terminated. For
purposes of this paragraph, taxes shall not be considered delinquent if
the Company has withheld the payment of taxes pending the appeal of
a tax valuation, assessment or bill, provided that such withholding of
payment 1s allowed by law, and provided further that the Company
does not withhold that portion of the tax bill which would be due on

the tax value or assessment not contested by the Company,

. Termination: Upon failure of the Company to meet its Obligations as

set forth herein, the County may elect to terminate this Agreement in



R&S 2604300 1

whole or in part. If the County elects to terminate, notice of
termination shall be given in the manner set forth in Section III,
Failure of the County to elect termination in whole or in part shall not
constitute a waiver of the right of the County to make such election at
a later time. Nothing herein shall prohibit the parties from negotiating
an alternative remedy for the failure of the Company to meet one or

more of its obligations, consistent with North Carolina law.

. Re-convevance or Surrender of Property:

First Five vears; If, and only if, the Company fails to construct the

improvements as provided in the Development Plan within the times
specified therein, and in any event, within five (5) years from the
Commencement Date, then the Company shall, within thirty (30) days
of receipt of the Notice of Termination specified in F above, re-convey
the Property to the County. Any determination by the County that
Company has failed to construct the required improvements shall be
made and notice of said failure shall be provided by the County within
120 days following the end of year 5 from the Commencement Date.

In such event, the Company shall remove from the Property all
personal property and, such fixtures as the County directs, and the
Property shall be free and clear of any encumbrances, liens or
obligations of any kind. If re-conveyance of the Property is
impracticable because Company cannot remove its personal property,

or cannot remove encumbrances, liens or other obligations, Company



R&S 26043001

shall have the option of paying County $5,000,000.00, the agreed upon
fair market value of the Property, less all sales and property tax
revenue already received by the County in connection with the Project,
in lieu of re-conveyance.

2. Years 6-10: If County terminates the Agreement any time after 5
vears from the Commencement Date (plus the notification period
specified above), Company shall within thirty (30) days of receipt of
the Notice of Termination specified in F above, re-convey the Property
to the County. In such event, the Company shall remove from the
Property all personal property and, such fixtures as the County directs,
and the Property shall be free and clear of any encumbrances, liens or
obligations of any kind. In lieu of re-conveyance, and at Company’s
option, Company may pay the County $5,000,000.00, the agreed upon
fair market value of the Property, less all sales and property tax
revenue already received the County in connection with the Project, in
lieu of conveyance.

IV. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS:

A. Reporting and Audit Rights: Designated county officials charged with

carrying out this Agreement and having a need to know will have the
right, from time to time on reasonable notice, at reasonable times, and at
a reasonable location the Company designates, to examine the
Company’s records relating to the Project as may be necessary to verify

the Company’s compliance with this Agreement.



R&S 2604300_1

B.

D.

Company Reserved Rights: The Company at all times maintains its
right to dispute the assessed value of the Property or the Improvements
thereon with appropriate governmental agencies in the manner

prescribed by law.

. Termination: The Company may terminate this Agreement at any time

in its sole discretion. Such termination will subject the Company to the
requirement for re-conveyance of the Property, as set out herein-above.

No Pledge of Faith and Credit; Purpose:

1. No provision of this Agreement will be construed or interpreted as

creating a pledge of the faith and credit of the County in the meaning of
any constitutional debt limitation. The parties acknowledge that the
scope, term and duration of this Agreement are in all events reasonable.
No provision of this Agreement will be construed or interpreted as
delegating governmental powers or as a donation or a lending of the
credit of the County within the meaning of the North Carolina
constitution. No provision of this Agreement will be construed to
pledge or to create a lien on any class or source of the County’s moneys,
nor will any provision of the Agreement restrict to any extent prohibited
by law any action or right of action on the part of any future Board of
Commissioners for the County.

The Company and the County acknowledge that all expenditures made
by the County as provided in this Agreement are for a bona fide public

purpose and are expended in good faith reliance on the Local



R&S 2604300_1

Development Act. If this Agreement is challenged or threatened to be
challenged, (i) the County promptly will notify the Company in writing,
(i1) the Company will have the right to participate in the defense of any
challenge at its own expense and with counsel of it’s choosing, and (iii)
the County will defend this Agreement from those challenges. The
Company will provide such reasonable assistance (excluding financial

assistance) as the County requests in connection with any such defense.

. Disclaimers: The Company acknowledges that the County has not

designed the Project, that the County has not created any plans or
specifications with respect to the Project, and that the County:

Is not a manufacturer of, or dealer in, any of the component parts of the
Project or similar facilities;

Has not made any recommendation, give any advice or taken any other
action with respect to:

a. The choice of any contractor, supplier, vendor or designer of,
or any other contractor, supplier, vendor or designer of, or any
other contractor with respect to, the Project or any component
part of the Project or any property or rights relating to the
Project; or

b. Any action taken or to be taken with respect to the Project or
any component part of the Project or any property or rights
relating to the Project at any stage of the construction of the

Project;



R&S 2604300 1

3. Has not made any warranty or other representation, express or implied,
That the Project or any component part of the Project or any property or
rights relating to the Project;

a. Will not result in or cause injury or damage to persons or
property;

b. Has been or will be properly designed, or will accomplish the
results which the Company intends; or

c. Issafe in any manner or respect.

F. Representations and Warranties:

1. The Company represents and warrants to the County that as of the date
of this Agreement:
a. It is a business corporation duly authorized or possessing a certificate of
authority to do business in the State of North Carolina;
b. It has the power and authority to own its properties and assets and to
carry on its business as now being conducted, and has the power and
authority to execute and perform this Agreement:
c. This Agreement
1. Is the legal, valid and binding Agreement of the Company,
enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms,

ii. Does not violate any order of any court or other agency of
government binding on the Company or the charter documents of
the Company, and

1ii. Does not conflict with, result in a breach of, or constitute an



R&S 2604300 1

event of default under any material indenture, agreement or other

instrument to which the Company is a party; and

d. The Company has not received written notice of any action or proceeding

LS

that challenges the validity of this Agreement or the Company’s right

and power to enter into and perform this Agreement.

. The County represents and warrants to the Company that:

The County is a body politic and political subdivision operating pursuant
to the laws of the State of North Carolina with power and authority to
enter into and perform this Agreement;

The County has taken all action necessary to authorize the execution,
delivery and performance of this Agreement;

This Agreement is a legal, valid and binding obligation of the County,
enforceable against the County in accordance with its terms; and

The County has not received written notice of any action or proceeding
that challenges the validity of this Agreement or the County’s right and
power to enter into and perform this Agreement.

DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES: If any warranty or representation of a

party in this paragraph shall have knowingly been false or inaccurate in
any material respect when made and is not remedied within 30 days
following the defaulting party’s receiving written notice from the non-
defaulting party (or in the case where it is capable of being remedied,
but is incapable of being remedied within a period of 30 days, such

further period as is reasonable in the circumstances), then the non-



R&S 2604300_1

1)

2)

defaulting party will have such rights and remedies as may be available

in law.

County and Company Not Business Partners: Notwithstanding the
terms of this Agreement, County is not a business participant with
Company in the Project.

Indemnity and Insurance:

Company will indemnify and hold County harmless from any property
damage or personal injury (including death) resulting from its activities
on the Property, including, construction by Company of the
Improvements and operation of the Project.

Insurance Coverage: Company will obtain, at its sole expense, a policy

of insurance, satisfactory in form and amount to the County’s risk
manager or insurance advisor, covering personal injury or death, or any
property damage arising as a result of Company’s operation of the
Project, and shall name the County as an additional insured under said
policy of insurance. Said policy shall be in effect during the entire term
of their Agreement and any extensions thereof, and shall survive the

terms of this Agreement to the extent necessary to cover the
indemnification above.

Controlling Law: This Agreement will be govemned by, and construed

in accordance with, the laws of the State of North Carolina. Any action
or proceeding related to this Agreement or its enforcement will be

adjudicated in the General Courts of Justice for Yancey County, North



R&S 2604500_1

Carolina or the United States District Court for the Western District of
North Carolina. The Company and the County consent and submit to
the jurisdiction and venue of those courts.

Severability: Each provision in this Agreement is severable. If any
provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or
unenforceable by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then {a) such
determination will not invalidate or render unenforceable any other
provision of this Agreement; (b) such provision will be construed as
closely as possible to the parties’ original intent in order to render such
provision valid or enforceable, as applicable; and (c) the remaining
terms of this Agreement, together with such reconstructed provision,

will constitute the parties’ entire Agreement.

- Confidentiality: The parties expressly acknowledge that the County is

an entity covered by N.C.G.S. Chapter 132, the Public Records Act,
including N.C.G.S. 132-1.1 regarding “confidential information.”
Provided Company complies with N.C.G.S. 132-1.1 regarding the
designation of confidential or trade secret information, the County will
keep confidential and will not disclose or publish any of the Company’s
confidential information as defined in N.C.G.S. 132-1.2, will keep all
records evidencing such trade secrets marked as “confidential trade
secrets”, and will keep all such records segregated in the County’s files.
If the County receives a request, subpoena or court order to disclose any

information or records the Company or its representatives have



R&S 2604300 _1

provided or will provide in the future relating to this Agreement, or the
Project described in this Agreement, the County will give the Company
prompt written notice of the request, subpoena or court order and will
discuss any proposed disclosure of such information or records with the
Company (and, to the extent possible, give the Company the
opportunity to contest any disclosure of information or records the
Company believes should not be disclosed) before making any such
disclosure. The County will not be liable in damages for the disclosure
of any information that is a public record or when such disclosure is
pursuant to the order of a court of competent jurisdiction. As required
by NCGS 132-1.11, the assumptions and methodologies used by the
County in any economic impact analysis for this Agreement shall be a

public record.

L. Notice: Any notice permitted or required under this Agreement from

one party to the other must be in writing and will be effective (a) on the
date it was actually delivered to the addressee if delivered personally, or
sent by a nationally recognized courier (such as FedEx, or United States

Parcel Service) or sent by facsimile, or (b) three days after having been
deposited in the United State Mail, if sent by certified mail, return
receipt requested, in each case to the respective address of the Company
and the County listed below, or those other addresses of which either
party give the other party written notice:

County: Lynn Austin, County Manager, Room No. 11, Yancey County



R&S 2604300_1

Courthouse, Burnsville, NC 28714: (828) 682-3971.

Lynn.Austin@yanceycountync.gov

Company: Paul Sellew, President and CEO, Little Leaf Farms, 84

Shady Brook Lane, Carlisle, Mass. 01741: 860-428-3479.

. Binding effect and Certification: Subject to the specific provisions of

this Agreement, this Agreement will be binding upon, inure to the
benefit of, and be enforceable by the parties and their respective
successors and assigns, notwithstanding changes in corporate or other
governance. This Agreement is conditioned upon it being certified as
having been pre-audited in order to comply with the budgetary
accounting requirements (if any) that apply under the Local
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act (N.C.G.S. Chapter 159, Art.
3), or otherwise. Such certification is set forth at the end of this

Agreement, and the Finance Officer for the County must sign it.

. Liability of Officers and Agents: No official, officer, agent, or

employee of the County or the Company will be subject to any personal
liability or accountability by reason of the execution or performance of
this Agreement or any other documents related to the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement. Such officials, officers, agents, or
employees will be deemed to execute such documents in their official
capacities only, and not in their individual capacities. This section will
not relieve any such official, officer, agent or employee form the

performance of any official duty provided for or authorized by law.



R&S 2604300 1

0.

1)

2)

Publicity: Except as required by law, and unless otherwise agreed by
the County and the Company, the County will make no public
announcement of the parties entering into this Agreement or the terms
and conditions of this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the Company.

Execution. Third Party, Construction, Assignment, Severability:

Execution in Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in
counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original and all of which,
when taken together, will constitute one and the same instrument.

No Third Party: Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, there
are no third party beneficiaries of this Agreement. All Exhibits attached
to this Agreement are incorporated into this Agreement by reference.
Construction of Terms: The terms “include”™ and “including” in this
Agreement will not be construed to be limiting. Agreement may not be
amended except by a written Amendment that both parties sign. This
Agreement is the entire Agreement of the parties regarding the subject

matter and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous understandings.

4) Severability: If any provision of this Agreement shall be determined to

be unenforceable, that determination shall not affect any other provision
of this Agreement.

E-Verify: Company shall comply with the requirements of Article 2 of
Chapter 64 of the North Carolina General Statutes. Further, if

Contractor utilizes a subcontractor, Contractor shall require the



subcontractor to comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter

64 of the North Carolina General Statutes.

R. Iran Divestment Act Certification: Company certifies that, as of the
date listed below, it is not on the Final Divestment List as created by the
State Treasurer pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143-6A-4. In compliance with the
requirements of the Iran Divestment Act and N.C.G.S. 143C-6A-5(b),
Company shall not utilize in the performance of the Agreement and the
Development Plan any contractor or subcontractor that is identified on

the Final Divestment List.

(This space is intentionally blank. Signatures of parties are on the following page)

R&S 26043001



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and the Company ha

executed by their duly authorized officers this day and year fir;

YANCEY COU

ATTEST:

/

/e caused this instrument to be

t above written,

y
Wz

TY

mg W@Z% Chairman Yancey

Clerk to the Board Yancey County Board of Commissioners

County Board of Commissioners

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by

and Fiscal Control Act.
\Mrpud, Ut ber oo

Finance Officer

Approved as to Form:
U )

County Attorney

R&S 2604300_1

sident

the Local Government Budget




DC

NCBELS & G284

civil
Design
Concepts, PA

750' x 475

GREENHOUSE [ ¥

97.78 ACRES
24 ACRES
900,000 CY
B CED

STEEP SLOPE AREA

LITTLE LEAF FARMS

SKETCH PAD BULLETIN A

OCTOBER 2020




Exhibit B

KEY DATES 2-Digit 4-Digit
5  Enter the date that the Applicant and the Proposed Grantee anticipates: Month Year
a. Making the decision whether to locate the Project in NC 2 2021
b. Making the initial capital investment related to the Project 3 2021
c. Starting construction of the new facility 8 2021
d. Completing construction of the new facility 9 2025
e. Hiring the first employee related to the Project 2 2022
f. Completing hiring for the Project. 12 2025

Permanent Jobs Only

a. Full-time b. Part-time c. Other”
6  Current number of existing jobs at the proposed Project site: 0 0 0
a. Full-time b. Part-time c. Other*
7 Number of new jobs to be created for the Project: 100
*Provide a brief explanation of the "Other” jobs noted above
N/A
8  Full-Time Project Jobs 2/2022 to
By Year 12/31/2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total
a. To be created by the Proposed Grantee 34 33 33 100
b. To be created by the Related Member(s)
c. Total Full-Time Project Jobs 34 33 33
Running Total
d. To be created by the Proposed Grantee 34 34 67 67 100
e. To be created by the Related Member(s)
f. Total Full-Time Project Jobs 34 34 67 67 100
9  Average Annual Wages of Full-Time Project Jobs 2/2022 to
a. By Year 12/31/2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Minimum
i To be created by the Proposed Grantee $55,588 $52,727 $52,727| $52,727
ii To be created by the Related Member(s)
iii Total Full-Time Project Jobs $55,588 $52,727 $52,727| $52,727
b. Running Total
i To be created by the Proposed Grantee 55,588 55,588 54,179 54,179 53,700 53,700
i To be created by the Related Member(s)
i Total Full-Time Project Jobs 55,588 55588 54,179 54,179 53,700 IERN LT

Page 1 of 2



PRIVATE INVESTMENT

Exhibit B

10 Direct Investment To Be Made By the Proposed Grantee or a 3rd Party on behalf of the Proposed Grantee

A. B. C.
Real Property
Calendar Real Property Construction and/or | Tangible Personal

Year Acquisition Improvements Property TOTAL
2021 $7,893,530 $3,125,000 $11,018,530
2022 $11,018,530|  $10,000,000 $21,018,530
2023 $11,018,530| $10,000,000 $21,018,530
2024 $10,018,530| $9,000,000 $19,018,530
2025 $9,318,530 $9,700,000 $19,018,530

$49,267,650 $41,825,000 $91,092,650

11 Direct Investment To Be Made By the Related Member(s)
A. B. C.
Real Property
Calendar Real Property Construction and/or | Tangible Personal

Year Acquisition Improvements Property TOTAL
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

12 Total Direct Investment

(the Proposed Grantee and the Related Member(s) combined)

A. B. C.
Real Property
Calendar Real Property Construction and/or | Tangible Personal

Year Acquisition Improvements Property TOTAL
2021 . . S7.893,530|  $3,125,000 $11,018,530
2022 _$11,018,530f  $10,000,000 $21,018,530
2023 _— _$11.018,530| $10,000,000 521,018,530
2024 _$10,018,530 $9,000,000 19,018,530
2025 $9,318,530 $9,700,000 $19,018,530

$49,267,650 $41,825,000 $91,092,650

Page 2 of 2



Exhibit C: Proposed Job Creation QOutline

New Full-Time Project-Related Jobs

Provide the number of permanent full-time positions expected to be created at the Project
location in the time period specified. Do not include part-time, temporary, contract, H-1B

Average Annual

Wage of New Full
Time Project

visa, or leased jobs; positions that will be transferred from locations within NC; or positions Jobs NOT
JOB CLASSIFICATIONS that will be filled prior to the JDIG award. Including benefits
A B C D E F G H
Provide general job classifications for the Jobs
permanent full-time jobs expected to be Created (Provide the first
created by the Project. Applications that Between Jobs Jobs Jobs Jobs year avg.annual
list all jobs on one row will be returned for 2/2022&  CreatedIn  CreatedIn  CreatedIn  Created In wage for the
revision. 12/31/2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total classification)
Employees of the Proposed Grantee
General Manager I . - - B 1] $150,000
Production Manager 2 2 2 6 (] __ $75,000
Growers 1 2 Jl 2 2 6 || $100,000
Maintenance Technician -2 ____ 2 2 6 || $65,000
Truck Driver & 2 2 6 $60,000
Forklift Driver 3 '3 .. 2 9 $50,000
Packaging Line Operators 20 B 20 o 20 60 [|  $45,000
Office Administrators I 2, 6| _ $45000
Total for the Proposed Grantee - By Year 34 33 33 100
Total for the Proposed Grantee - Running 34 34 67 67 100 100
Employees of the Related Member(s)
Total for the Related Member(s) - By Year
Total for the Related Member(s) - Running TOTAL FULL-
TOTAL JOBS - BY YEAR 34 33 33 100 TIME JOBS*
TOTAL JOBS - RUNNING TOTAL 34 34 67 67 100 (U 100 |

*The total number of positions created (100) includes 5

current employees of the Grantee that will be transferred to

the Project location from a facility located outside of North Carolina - 95  jobs will be hired in North Carolina.



